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RELEVANCE OF HEALTH PROMOTION 
 
 
Tobacco 

•  Smoking is the leading cause of disease and disability globally.1 
•  Tobacco kills approximately 19,000 Australians each year2, which equates to 

approximately 1,700 West Australians annually. 
•  In Western Australia, tobacco was responsible for 13,698 years of life lost in 2000.3 
•  In 1999, more than one-half of 12-17 year-olds in Western Australia had smoked at 

least part of a cigarette in their lifetime, 35% in the previous year, 21% in the previous 4 
weeks and 17% in the week before the survey.4 

•  Tobacco and alcohol continue to be the greatest contributors to preventable disease, ill-
health and social costs in Australia.5  

 
 
Physical Activity 

•  In 2002, 32% of adults in Western Australia were not active at levels sufficient to benefit 
their health and a further 13% did not participate in any physical activity.6 

•  The proportion of adults who are sufficiently active has declined between 1999 and 
2002.6 

•  For every 1 per cent increase in the proportion of people who are sufficiently active, the 
national health cost of heart disease, diabetes and colon cancer combined could be 
reduced by about $3.6 million per year.7  

 
 
Obesity 

•  In Australia, around one half of adult women and two thirds of adult men are overweight 
or obese and the prevalence is increasing.8  

•  The prevalence of overweight and obesity in Australian children has doubled in the last 
decade.9 

 
 
Mental Health 

•  The World Health Organisation estimate that by 2020 in developed countries, 
depression will be the third leading cause of disability adjusted life-years lost, and self-
inflicted injuries the tenth leading cause.10 

•  Depression, social isolation and lack of social support have all been confirmed as risk 
factors for coronary heart disease.11 

 
 

Indigenous Health 
•  The life expectancy of Indigenous Australians is 20 years less than other Australians.12 
•  Rates of chronic diseases such as diabetes and coronary heart disease are 

considerably higher among Indigenous people than other Australians. 
•  Available data indicate that rates of unhealthy behaviours such as smoking, excess 

alcohol consumption and physical inactivity are higher among Indigenous people than 
other Australians.  
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Our Vision A Healthy WA 
 
 
 
 
 
Our Mission Working together to promote health and healthy 

environments through a range of programs, partnerships 
and settings. 

 
 
 
 
 
Who We Are Healthway (the Western Australian Health Promotion 

Foundation) was established in 1991 under Section 15 of 
the Tobacco Control Act 1990 as an independent statutory 
body reporting to the Minister for Health.  

 
 As well as funding activities relating to the promotion of 

good health, particularly among the young, Healthway had 
as a priority the replacement of tobacco advertising and 
sponsorship during its first 5 years.  

 
 Responsibility for the overall management of Healthway 

including decisions about funding is held by a Board whose 
members represent health, youth, sport, arts and country 
organisations from government and non government 
sectors. A number of expert committees have been 
established with a range of responsibilities including making 
recommendations to the Board concerning the allocation of 
grants and sponsorships. 

 
 
 
 
What We Do Healthway provides grants to health and research 

organisations as well as sponsorships to sport, arts, racing 
and community groups which encourage healthy lifestyles 
and advance health promotion programs. 

 
 
 
 
Our Clients While Healthway seeks to access the wider West Australian 

community through the activities supported, priority groups 
include youth and those in whom health inequalities exist. 
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HEALTHWAY BOARD MEMBERS 
 
 
The Healthway Board is established under Section 15 of the Tobacco Control Act 1990.  
Pursuant to S17(1), the Board  consists of 11 members, comprising a Chairperson and 10 
nominees of stakeholder groups. The Board represents a mix of government and non-
government organisations. 
 
The Board is the accountable authority of Healthway.  It sets strategic direction and makes all 
decisions relating to the allocation of funding for grants and sponsorships.  During 2002-2003 
the board met on six occasions and at 30 June 2003 comprised:  
 
 
Ray Della-Polina 
Chairman 
 
Mr Della-Polina was appointed as Chairman of the Healthway Board in 1994 and was re-
appointed in 1997 and 2000 with the current term expiring in July 2003.  Mr Della-Polina has 
extensive experience and success in the commercial retail environment having led the growth 
of a small Marlows auto parts business into a National unlisted public company from 1977–
2003.  Until earlier this year Mr Della-Polina held the position of Executive Chairman of 
Marlows.  Mr Della-Polina is currently also Chairman of the Youth Minister’s Media Committee 
and holds a number of other Directorships. 
 
 
Leith Taylor 
Deputy Chairperson 
 
In May 1997 Ms Taylor was appointed Deputy Chairperson of the Healthway Board following a 
nomination from Arts Voice.  Ms Taylor has extensive experience across the Arts area – in 
particular the performing arts where she has worked as an actor, director, writer and producer.  
She was appointed to the Board for a period of three years in 1997 and was re-appointed in 
2000 for a term expiring in October 2003.  She has an involvement with young people in her 
capacity as Theatre Director at many arts and education institutions and has sat on many 
National and State Arts Boards and Committees including the Australia Council and is currently 
a member of the Perth International Arts Festival Board. 
 
 
Dr Rosanna Capolingua 
 
Dr Capolingua was nominated to the Healthway Board by the Australian Medical Association of 
WA, after two terms as President of the AMA (WA) from 1998-2000.  Dr Capolingua’s 
appointment commenced in October 2000 for a period of 3 years and she will be eligible for 
reappointment.  Currently Dr Capolingua is Principal at the Floreat Medical Practice and 
Director – GP Liaison at St John of God Health Care, Subiaco.  She also holds a number of 
Federal and WA based appointments including Medical Director, AMA (WA) Youth Foundation 
and Board Member, Mercy Hospital. 
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Maurice Swanson 
 
In October 2000, the Australian Council on Smoking and Health nominated Mr Swanson for 
appointment to the Board for a period of three years and he will be eligible for re-appointment.  
Since 1998 Mr Swanson has held the position of Chief Executive of the National Heart 
Foundation WA Division and he has over 20 years experience in health promotion and public 
health with previous positions including Director, Health Promotion Services in the Health 
Department of WA.  His main areas of interest are tobacco control and the prevention of 
cardiovascular disease.  Mr Swanson has been a member of the Australian Council on 
Smoking and Health since 1983 and currently holds the position as Secretary of the Executive. 
 
 
Michael Jackson 
 
Healthway Board membership includes the appointment of the person holding the office of 
Commissioner for Health or the nominee of that person.  Accordingly, Mr Michael Jackson was 
appointed to the Board in December 2002 for a three year term.  Mr Jackson currently holds the 
position of Executive Director Population Health at the Department of Health.  The Population 
Health portfolio includes: Environmental Health; Health Promotions; Communicable Disease; 
Aboriginal Health; Health Information; Genomics; Child and Community Health; Breastscreen 
WA and Cervical Cancer. 
 
The work of the Population Health Division has a very close inter relationship with the 
Healthway initiatives, so this is a valuable link with the Population Health programs.  Mr 
Jackson has extensive background in health systems at a Commonwealth and State level. 
 
 
Graeme Quelch 
 
Mr Quelch was appointed to the Board in January 2002 following a nomination from the 
Australian Council for Health, Physical Education and Recreation for a three year term.  Mr 
Quelch currently holds the position of Manager Curriculum Services for the West Coast 
Education District with the Department of Education and Training WA.  Mr Quelch has been 
active in diverse projects and initiatives connected to the health and well being of young 
Australians at both state and national levels.  Currently he is President of ACHPER WA, chairs 
both the Childrens Physical Activity Coalition and the Healthy Active Lifestyle Awards 
Committee, is a member of the ACHPER National Executive, member of the Physical 
Education Studies working group, represents the Department of Education and Training on the 
Evaluation and Monitoring Working Group for the Physical Activity Taskforce and is a member 
of the program committee for the National Physical Activity Conference. 
 
 
Kerry Ross 
 
Healthway Board membership includes appointment of the Executive Director of the Office for 
Children & Young People’s Policy. At 30 June 2003, Ms Kerry Ross was the Acting Executive 
Director, nominated for appointment to the Board by her Office until the appointment process of 
Executive Director was finalised.  Previously Ms Ross was Director of Policy Co-ordination and 
Development at the Family and Children's Policy Office.  For a number of years Ms Ross 
lectured in psychology, Aboriginal and multicultural education at what is now Edith Cowan 
University. 
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Leslie Atkins 
 
Mr Leslie Atkins was nominated by the WA Local Government Association for appointment to 
the Board for a term of one year ending January 2004 representing country sporting interests.  
Mr Atkins is a currently serving councillor with the City of Mandurah.  Mr Atkins studied 
business at what is now Edith Cowan University and holds a Certificate of Settlement Agency 
Procedures from Perth TAFE.  He is an Associate of the Australian Grain Institute and has 
recently been appointed to the Community, Affordable and Sustainable Housing Committee 
(CASHSC). 
 
 
Bob Welch 
 
Mr Bob Welch was appointed to the Board in 2000 for a period of three years following a 
nomination from the WA Sports Federation.  Mr Welch currently holds the position of Executive 
Director of the Sports Federation and is a Board Member of the WA Disabled Sports 
Association.  He has been employed in the WA sports system since 1977 and is a member of 
several clubs and organisations. 
 
 
Greg McLennan 
 
Healthway Board membership includes the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Department of Sport and Recreation or his nominee.  Accordingly, Mr McLennan was 
nominated for appointment to the Board in 1997.  Mr McLennan is the Manager, Consultancy at 
the Department of Sport and Recreation.  He holds a Bachelor of Education, a Graduate 
Diploma in Physical Education and a Company Directors Diploma.  He has worked in various 
areas of government over the past 26 years mainly with the Department of Sport and 
Recreation.  Mr McLennan has extensive experience in international, national and state sport 
governance and currently is a member of the International Lifesaving Federation’s Sport 
Commission.  He has specific skills in the areas of organisational governance and 
management. 
 
 
Allanah Lucas 
 
Ms Allanah Lucas is the nominee of the Department of Arts WA on the Healthway Board.  Ms 
Lucas (BA & Dip. Ed. UWA : MA City of London) has worked in the arts for over twenty years 
both in Australia and in the UK.  As a professional arts administrator, a performing arts 
producer, presenter and practitioner, researcher, consultant, and tutor she embodies a diversity 
of business, management, creative, industrial and academic skills and knowledge.  In the 90's, 
Ms Lucas undertook a variety of roles in the UK - as Theatre Officer for the Southern Arts 
Regional Arts Board, as the Executive Director of the Salisbury Playhouse and also as an 
assessor and consultant working with the Arts Council of England, the UK National Lottery, 
local government authorities and arts organisations such as the Chichester Festival Theatre.  
Ms Lucas returned to Perth in late 1997 to take up the position of General Manager of the Perth 
Theatre Company and was appointed the Director of Arts WA in 2000. 



 

Annual Report 2002-2003  7 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
It seems only a short time ago that I joined Healthway’s team, Board, committee members and 
many of our stakeholders at the Challenge Stadium to develop the Healthway Strategic Plan for 
2000 to 2003. 
 
Incredibly, this year sees Healthway reach the final stages of the implementation of that plan 
and the beginning of preparations for a new plan to steer the organisation through the next 3 
years. 
 
I am pleased to report that Healthway's activities have not only been on track with the Strategic 
Plan 2000-2003 but there have also been some major achievements and innovations within 
that framework. 
 
For example, this year saw Healthway make a significant contribution towards a healthier WA 
with the development of health policies for organisations it sponsors. 
 
As part of the Strategic Plan 2000-2003, Healthway identified the need to sustain the impact of 
its grants and sponsorships.  In line with this, organisations receiving over $20,000 in 
sponsorship are now required as an essential part of the agreement to have a written health 
policy in place. 
 
Health policies reinforce the organisation's commitment to promoting good health in general as 
well as specific health issues such as tobacco control, sun protection, alcohol and other drugs, 
healthy food choices and sport safe practices. 
 
The policy requirement was put in place mid-way through the year and over 100 sports, arts, 
racing and health organisations have taken the first step towards embracing a healthy culture 
by submitting their new health policies to Healthway. 
 
The year also saw Healthway progress several other innovative health projects that are in line 
with the Strategic Plan. These included: 
 
The Mental Health Scoping Exercise.  Healthway has taken a leadership role in the area of 
mental health promotion with the commissioning of mental health scoping research which 
aimed to identify and document the perceptions, beliefs and attitudes of West Australians 
towards mental health issues.  The research was completed in December and Healthway has 
been working with health organisations to facilitate the development of a mental health public 
awareness campaign based on the research results.  It is hoped that a campaign will be 
developed in the early part of next year. 
 
A Community Survey on Tobacco resulted from a decision late last year by Healthway's Board 
to support a request from health agencies for research into community attitudes towards 
tobacco control legislation.  Healthway funded a major survey of the Perth metropolitan 
community and the WA rural community to assess public opinion on a wide range of tobacco 
control issues.  The information has proved invaluable and Healthway and the health agencies 
now have access to up to date information on what West Australians think about a range of 
tobacco control issues.  These include community attitudes on the marketing, advertising, sale 
and supply of tobacco products, smoking in public places including hospitality venues, 
awareness of existing laws and regulations on tobacco control and smoking behaviour and 
attitudes to quitting.  Amongst other things, the research showed there is considerable public 
support for stronger tobacco control measures in Western Australia. 
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As in recent years, this year was marked with requests for health promotion grants and 
sponsorships significantly exceeding the available funds. 
 
This means that Healthway has needed to be both thorough in its assessment processes and 
more selective in its funding choices, to ensure that it receives value for money and optimal 
health promotion returns. 
 
This trend is set to continue into the coming years and Healthway will be seeking to ensure a 
strong alignment between projects and events sponsored and the key health areas and priority 
population groups identified in its new strategic plan. 
 
The year was also one of significant change within Healthway's management. 
 
Addy Carroll, who had steered Healthway's development from the very beginning 12 years ago, 
retired in December.  During her time as Healthway's Executive Director, Addy made an 
immense contribution not only to Healthway but also to the health promotion environment in 
Western Australia. 
 
In fact, her contribution has been widely recognised well beyond the health field with her 
inclusion in the Australia Day Honours list announced in January. 
 
On behalf of Healthway, I congratulate Addy on her well deserved award and also thank her for 
her 12 years of commitment to Healthway.  Addy's enthusiasm for and commitment to 
excellence in health promotion has seen the Health Promotion Foundation of Western Australia 
develop from a basic idea into a structure which is now a world renowned model. 
 
I have always been impressed with Addy's dedication to her role at Healthway and the respect 
she earned not only from among the team, but also from the community representatives on 
Healthway's Board and health, sport, arts and racing advisory committees. 
 
As Addy commenced her well-earned retirement, Healthway chose Neil Guard to take over as 
Executive Director and steer the organisation into the future. 
 
Neil's career in planning, marketing, and program development especially in the areas of 
quality, customer service and cultural change, has spanned 15 years in the private sector in the 
UK until he moved to Western Australia with his family over five years ago. 
 
Since arriving in Perth, Neil has worked in senior levels of State Government.  Most recently, he 
was Director of Accommodation Services for the Disability Services Commission where he 
managed an annual budget of $50 million and a staff of 1000. 
 
While the Healthway budget of $17 million and team of 14 may look much smaller, it offered the 
opportunity for Neil to fulfil an ambition to work in the health area, particularly in health 
promotion. 
 
Neil has joined Healthway at an important time.  The development of a new strategic plan is 
progressing.  Neil’s skills equip him well, with the help of his team, to build on the foundation 
Addy and her team has laid. Neil’s skills and experience in strategic development and 
innovation, combined with his commitment to customer service will be invaluable in the 
development and implementation of Healthway's new directions for 2004-2007. 
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In closing, some words of congratulations and thanks. 
 
Congratulations to Professor Fiona Stanley, who has been a member of Healthway's Health 
Promotion Research Committee.  Professor Stanley was named Australian of the Year on 
Australia Day. 
 
And congratulations also to Yvonne Rate, who is a former Sports Advisory Committee member 
and a Healthway Board member and to Margaret Sears, who was a member of the very first 
Arts Advisory Committee in 1991.  Both joined Addy Carroll in the Australia Day Honours List. 
 
Finally, I thank my fellow Board members and members of Healthway's advisory committees for 
their commitment to Healthway during the year.  
 
Board and committee members have been supported by Healthway’s team, a very effective 
operational team of committed and energetic people implementing our plans and strategies 
towards a healthier WA. 
 
 

 
 
Ray Della Polina 
Chairman 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 
As you might expect, much of my first six months with Healthway has been spent taking stock 
of the significant achievements since the Foundation was established, and especially over the 
last three years which cover the period of the Strategic Plan 2000-2003. 
 
I have met with a wide range of people, organisations and community groups, many with a long 
term association with Healthway and, if there has been a primary theme emerging from my 
stocktaking exercise, it has been the high regard in which the organisation is held throughout 
Western Australia. 
 
Certainly some of the feedback has suggested areas where improvements may be made, but 
the overall impression is that Healthway is seen as an organisation with a commitment to 
improving the health of West Australians, as well as continuous improvement and innovation in 
its operations, whilst striving to work fairly and efficiently with its stakeholders. 
 
This face-to-face feedback is also supported by the findings of two reviews and surveys 
conducted on behalf of Healthway during the past year. 
 
The first was a follow up this year to a major Organisational Survey of sponsored organisations 
undertaken in 2001.  In the Organisational Survey, 90% of organisations said they were very 
happy with the way in which Healthway worked with them; however one in ten suggested there 
was room for improvement. 
 
The follow up survey sought more detailed feedback from those organisations.  Suggestions for 
improvement included a request for Healthway to provide more feedback to organisations on its 
evaluation of their projects and events and to try to better align the timelines for evaluation with 
further funding applications.  Healthway is already working on these issues. 
 
The second review completed in the year was of Healthway’s Health Support Sponsorship 
Program.  This review also involved consultation with several of Healthway’s stakeholders.  The 
findings showed that the program continues to be seen as an important and valuable 
component of Healthway and health agency activity and that continuing to support 
sponsorships through partnerships with the health agencies adds significantly to the program. 
 
However, the review also revealed scope for many small improvements which could lead to 
improvements in the effectiveness and sustainability of the Health Support Sponsorship 
Program.  These include the need to review the number of health messages promoted through 
sponsorships and to seek even closer links with priority health promotion campaigns while 
seeking opportunities to streamline contracting, reporting and design production and despatch 
processes.  Healthway is now working with the health agencies to implement these 
improvements. 
 
It is an exciting time to be joining the organisation.  Healthway is currently nearing the end of 
the Strategic Plan period for 2000-2003 and progressing the process of developing the 
strategic directions for another three year phase.  Our partners and stakeholders are already 
being invited to take part in the development of the new plan. 
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An external review of State, National and International health priorities has been completed on 
Healthway’s behalf by the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit (HPEU) at The University of 
Western Australia.  The review, which will inform the Plan development process, suggests that 
there are a number of significant emerging issues which need consideration and possibly 
emphasis in the next plan.  It also highlights the need for Healthway to continue to focus and 
build on the achievements with many of its existing priorities in the coming years and on the 
foundations that have been laid in other areas. 
 
In terms of the achievements, preliminary findings from a major Community Survey on 
Recreation and Health conducted in October 2002, suggest that some of these are significant.  
The survey, previously conducted in 1992, 1994 and 1998 reported, among other things, on 
community participation in sports, arts and racing activities and on health behaviours.  The 
early data received indicate that public participation in sports, arts and racing activities is 
increasing and that people involved are moving towards more healthy behaviours, including a 
substantial decline in smoking among club members. 
 
More specifically, early data suggest:- 
 
� The number of people attending a league or professional sporting event has increased by 

10% in the last 10 years to 42%; 
 
� 50% of respondents with children aged 15 years or younger reported their child having 

involvement in one or more junior sport or racing clubs – an increase from 43% in 1992; 
 
� People who are members of sport, racing or outdoor recreation clubs were less likely to be 

smokers in 2002 than in 1998, with a decrease in smoking in this group from 24% to 18%; 
 
� The prevalence of smoking declined among spectators from 31% in 1998 to 22% in 2002; 

and 
 
� In the arts, personal participation increased in 2002 to 44% compared with 38% in 1992 

and people involved in arts activities tended to show healthier behaviours than others in 
the community. 

 
These early data are very encouraging and we look forward to receiving the full results in the 
near future. 
 
Areas where progress is possibly less advanced, but where Healthway is hoping to build in the 
coming term, include mental health and Indigenous health.  However, progress has been made 
in the past year for this to occur. 
 
This year, for example, Healthway took a leadership role in the mental health area by 
undertaking scoping research and establishing partnerships with key stakeholders to develop 
future directions.  Two Healthy Communities Pilot Projects were also completed in 
Dongara/Denison and Narrogin.  These were established in 1999 and sought to address health 
issues in these communities through forming partnerships at the local level, for example 
between youth groups, local shires and public health units.  The independent evaluation of 
these pilot projects, conducted by HPEU, has now provided a base from which to build further 
work in this area. 
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In the area of Indigenous health, an Aboriginal Imaging Project aiming to promote the emotional 
and spiritual wellbeing of Indigenous people has made significant progress during the past year 
and promises to make an impact on the three pilot Indigenous communities involved, as well as 
learnings for the broader West Australian community. 
 
So there are many exciting developments on the agenda. 
 
When I joined Healthway, I knew I was becoming involved in an organisation that was 
respected for its commitment to and innovation in health promotion.  It is therefore very 
pleasing to discover that far from resting on its laurels, Healthway has many interesting and 
innovative developments on the horizon. 
 
I look forward to working with Healthway’s talented and energetic team as we develop these 
exciting initiatives in the future and thank the team, the Board and Advisory Committees for 
their professionalism, commitment and support during the past year. 
 

 
 
Neil Guard 
Executive Director 
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 
 
 
 

Neil Guard 
Executive Director Responsible for the provision of leadership and 

implementation of strategic direction as determined by 
the Board as well as the operational management of 
Healthway. 

 
 
 
Jo Clarkson 
Director, Health Promotion Responsible for administration of the Health Promotion 

Program including health promotion projects, research 
and sponsorship.  This involves servicing the Health 
Advisory Committee and Research Sub-Committee. 

 
 
 
Lindsay Lovering 
Arts Program Manager Responsible for the Arts Sponsorship Program 

including developing policies and assessment of 
applications as well as servicing the Arts Advisory 
Committee. 

 
 
 
Bill Ongley 
Sport Program Manager Responsible for the Sport Sponsorship Program 

including developing policies and assessment of 
applications as well as servicing the Sport Advisory 
Committee. 

 
 
 
Lina Barbato 
Manager, Corporate Services Responsible for managing financial, human and 

administrative resources and providing infrastructure 
support to Healthway’s operations. 

 
 
 
Paul Tye 
Sponsorship Co-ordinator Responsible for the Racing Sponsorship Program and 

for liaison and co-ordination between Healthway and 
health agencies involved in support sponsorship. 
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HEALTHWAY CORPORATE STRUCTURE-AS AT 30 JUNE 2003 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Neil Guard 
Executive Director 

Jo Clarkson 
Director Health Promotion 

Lindsay Lovering 
Arts Program Manager 

Lina Barbato 
Manager Corporate 

Services

Jill Lockyer 
Executive Assistant 

Vanessa Thompson 
Receptionist 

Fiona Lindsay 
A/Sponsorship Admin Asst

Bill Ongley 
Sport Program Manager 

Bob Heron 
Admin Officer (P/T) 

Bernie Siva 
Finance & IT Officer 

Karen Cooksley 
Admin Asst (P/T) 

Helen Liddell 
Sponsorship Officer 

(Arts) 

Claire Chant 
Sponsorship Officer 

(Sport & Racing)

Joanne Cronin 
Health Promotion & 

Research Officer

Paul Tye 
Sponsorship 
Co-ordinator



 

Annual Report 2002-2003  16 

KEY STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS – REVIEW OF PROGRESS 
 
The past year has been the final year of implementation of Healthway’s Strategic Plan 2000-
2003.  The Plan identified five (5) key strategic directions which are supported by all of the 
Healthway program areas to ensure that Healthway’s health promotion goals are reached.  
This section provides a general progress report followed by a summary of how each of the 
program areas has addressed the key strategic directions of the organisation. 
 
 
1. Focussing on Areas of Greatest Health Priority 
 
A number of determinants, risk factors or behaviours and health issues have been identified 
as priorities for health promotion action.  It is important to determine action areas which 
support national and state priorities while taking into account the current programs in Western 
Australia run through government and non-government organisations. 
 
 

Key goals 1.1 Proactively encourage the development of programs and 
initiatives that address Healthway’s identified priority health 
areas. 
 

 1.2 Focus on nominated areas of high priority: Tobacco Smoking 
Control; Mental Health Promotion; Physical Activity and 
Indigenous Health. 

 
 
PRIORITY AREAS 
 
Healthway’s health priority areas for 2000-2003 are not inclusive of all national and state 
priorities, but reflect those identified as a priority for Healthway when reviewed in 1998 (Corti 
et al 1998) (1).  The selection of Healthway’s priorities is driven by public health significance, 
scientific evidence and Healthway’s legislative mandate.  They also take into account the 
current Western Australian programs and areas where alternative support may not be 
available. 
 
Healthway’s priorities are as follows: 
 
Determinants Risk Factor/Behaviours Health Issue 
 
Healthy behaviour Alcohol and other drug misuse Asthma prevention and control 
 

Healthy environments Good nutrition CVD prevention 
 

 Physical activity promotion ** Cancer prevention 
 

 Sexual health (includes HIV/STDs) Diabetes prevention 
 

 Sun Protection Injury prevention 
 

 Tobacco smoking control ** Mental health ** 
 

  Musculo-skeletal disorders prevention 
 

  Indigenous Health ** 
 
 

** High Priority Area 2000-2003 
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PROGRESS REPORT 
 
GENERAL 
 
Healthway’s position and intent in relation to all the high priority health issues of its Strategic 
Plan 2002 is clearly documented in position papers that are available both in written form and 
via the website. 
 
The commitment to supporting activities which address the health priority issues is also very 
evident in the budget allocations during the year.  Of the total of $14.6m of program funds 
available, over 57% was directed towards Healthway’s high priority program areas – physical 
activity promotion, mental health promotion, tobacco smoking control and Indigenous health. 
 
The area of tobacco smoking control has continued to receive the greatest focus as a health 
issue through Healthway’s Health Promotion Program and each of its Sponsorship Programs.  
In addition to providing ongoing support for several major tobacco control programs, during the 
year Healthway also funded a major survey of the Perth metropolitan community and the WA 
rural community to assess public opinion on a range of tobacco control issues, including 
attitudes to smoking in public places.  The survey results showed considerable public support 
for stronger tobacco control measures in Western Australia. 
 
In the area of mental health, Healthway commissioned Mental Health Scoping Research which 
has been an important initiative progressed during the year.  The research has been 
completed and documents the perceptions, beliefs and attitudes of West Australians towards 
mental health issues.  It is anticipated that the research will now lead to new initiatives in the 
mental health area. 
 
Increasing participation in active physical activity has continued to receive focus.  A number of 
Healthway staff have continued to be involved as members of working parties for the 
Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce and Healthway has actively encouraged proposals for 
sponsorship projects designed to increase participation levels.  Initiatives have included 
Aboriginal project grants with physical activity as a major component and sponsorship of the 
Department of Sport and Recreation’s Indigenous Sport Program to increase sport and 
recreation options for Aboriginal people as well as promoting the Smarter than Smoking 
message to Indigenous communities. 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Application forms for health promotion project and research programs draw attention to high 
health priority areas for Healthway – to encourage relevant applications to these areas. 
 
Tobacco Control programs and projects have continued to be prioritised, with 59% of the total 
health projects budget in 2002-2003 directed to tobacco control initiatives. The projects 
included over 21 Smart School Grants for tobacco control initiatives at the local 
school/community level.  
 
Continued funding has also been provided to several major tobacco control programs already 
in place including the Smoking Cessation Centre for Excellence (Fresh Start) managed by the 
Cancer Foundation; Smarter than Smoking, Make Smoking History, Say No To Smokes, and 
ACOSH. Papers on the Smarter than Smoking and Make Smoking History campaigns were 
also presented at the National Tobacco Control Conference in Melbourne and at the LEAP 
conference in Fremantle in April 2003. 
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To promote Physical Activity, funding was provided for local initiatives in support of the 
Department of Health’s statewide “Find 30” program, through local grants to regional 
population health units. Several Aboriginal project grants with physical activity as a major 
component were also awarded for community-based activities targeting Indigenous people.  
 
In the mental health area, a major scoping study for a mental health promotion campaign was 
completed by the Centre for Developmental Health. This formative study set out to explore 
Western Australian people’s perceptions around definitions of mental health, and to assess 
the feasibility of establishing a campaign in Western Australia along similar lines to the 
VicHealth ‘Together We Do Better’ campaign. 
 
The three-year funding for two ‘Healthy Communities’ pilot projects in Dongara-Denison and 
Narrogin also were completed during the year. The preliminary results were presented to 
interested stakeholders in December 2002 and the results from detailed evaluation of these 
projects are now being used to plan Healthway’s future directions in this area of work. 
 
To promote Aboriginal Health, a number of new, as well as ongoing initiatives have been 
funded. Aboriginal project grants have proved popular, with several new initiatives receiving 
funding this year including the ‘Kulkarriya Café’ in Fitzroy Crossing. The project aims to 
establish a café, run by children from the community school and will link with a number of 
curriculum targets. Other Aboriginal projects include a highly successful ‘Diabetes Lets All 
Find Out’ project in the remote Tjuntjuntjara community and a video-based project targeting at 
risk young people in Derby, which was co-funded by a number of agencies including 
Healthway.  
 

HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
In the research area, loadings were applied for assessment of research project and starter 
grants in the high priority areas of Tobacco Smoking Control, Mental Health Promotion, 
Physical Activity and Aboriginal Health. 
 
In an analysis of the funding to the eight new research project grants this year, the majority of 
the funding went to grants in these four high priority areas. 
 
The new research project grants funded this year that address Healthway’s high priority areas 
were to Dr NT Lautenschlager at The University of WA for ‘A trial of physical activity for 
vulnerable older adults with mild cognitive impairment’; Prof OP Almeida at The University of 
WA for ‘Promoting physical activity in later life: impact on memory and mood’; to Dr RM 
Rooney at Curtin University of Technology for ‘The effectiveness of the Positive Thinking 
Program in Preventing Internalising Disorders in 8-9 Year Old Children’; to Dr G Hamilton at 
Curtin University of Technology for a study of the ‘Impact of extra-curricular activities on 
adolescents’ connectedness and cigarette smoking’; and to Dr TG Westerman at Curtin 
University of Technology for ‘An intervention program for Aboriginal Youth identified at risk of 
depression and suicide’. 
 
Within the research starter grants, five of the seven grants funded fell in the high priority areas, 
with two focusing on physical activity, two on mental health and one on tobacco control. 
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The new starter grants funded this year that address Healthway’s high priority areas were the 
Associate Prof AC Page at The University of WA for ‘Increasing healthy lifestyles among 
people with intellectual disability’; to Associate Professor Donna Cross at the Curtin University 
of Technology for a ‘Formative Study of Aggression Prevention and Reduction in Junior 
Primary School Children’; to Ms Sharyn Burns at Curtin University of Technology for a study 
‘Analysing the factors that influence primary school children to bully others’; to Dr Sebely Pal 
at Curtin University of Technology for ‘Using Pedometers to step towards better health: A pilot 
study’; and to Professor Peter Le Souef at The University of WA for ‘Pilot study to assess 
tobacco smoke emissions from smokers’. 
 
Two research scholarships were awarded, one to Ms Melis (ECU) in the area of mental health 
promotion and one to Mr McCormack (UWA) in the area of physical activity promotion. 
 
The Independent Chair for Healthway’s Research Sub-Committee this year was Dr Michael 
Booth of the University of Sydney and the Westmead Children’s Hospital.  Dr Booth is an 
internationally recognised expert on physical activity and obesity in children and adolescents 
and during his visit to Perth he was the guest speaker for a Healthway Research Seminar on 
physical activity and presented a paper on ‘Physical Activity among Young Australians: 
Options for Action’. 
 

SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
During the report period participation in physical activity continued to be the main area of focus 
of the Sport Sponsorship Program, which has required physical activity to be the primary 
objective of all applications.  

 

The Be Active Grants Program (initiated in 2001-2002) concluded during the year with two of 
the three funded projects demonstrating particularly successful returns. Both a Mall Walking 
project at the Whitfords shopping centre and a Kimberley Small Grants Program to support a 
range of innovative community-based initiatives were successful in reaching identified target 
groups for physical activity and creating models for future replication. A third project involving 
General Practitioners in the Perth and Hills Division experienced a number of problems and, 
as a result was not successful in increasing the physical activity of inactive middle aged men. 

 

In total some 14% of the 2002-2003 Sport Sponsorship Program budget was allocated to 
projects promoting physical activity. This included $100,000 being committed to a joint 
initiative of the National Heart Foundation and the Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce.  This 
initiative aimed at generating new physical activity projects and programs to encourage 
participation at a community level and will be fully implemented in 2003-2004.  

 

Nearly 47% of the total sponsorship funds were allocated to projects promoting priority health 
messages. 33% went to sponsorships promoting tobacco smoking control and some 14% to 
sponsorships promoting physical activity. While many of the sports projects receiving 
sponsorship are promoting messages other than physical activity, they are all in effect helping 
to address the priority health issue of physical activity. 
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ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In 2002-2003 the Arts Advisory Committee continued to develop and implement strategies 
designed to support Healthway’s health priority areas and in particular the issue of smoking 
and young people.  Around $1.22m or 48% of the Arts Sponsorship Program funds was 
allocated to 73 projects which promoted either the Smoke Free WA or Smarter than Smoking 
messages.  
 
Positive feedback has been received from presenters of events in licensed venues that young 
people are becoming increasingly accepting and supportive of smoke free policies.  
 
Following the introduction of a policy in relation to smoking on stage, a similar policy in relation 
to the depiction, portrayal or glamorization of smoking in films was introduced during 2002-
2003.  Healthway will explore opportunities to support the development and screening of films 
and festivals by local producers which conform to this Policy during the coming year. 
 
Physical activity was the focus of the WA Ballet and their Be Active - Adopt a School program 
which has seen the development of a long lasting relationships between the Company and a 
number of disadvantaged schools in metropolitan area.  Physical Activity Promotion was also 
the focus of an art walk and associated map, developed through the Cannery Arts Centre in 
Esperance.  The walk includes the significant public art works in the area and it is hoped that 
this walk will become a tourist attraction promoting the creative artworks of the town as well as 
directly encouraging and involving people in physical activity.  
 

RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In addressing Healthway’s priorities, the racing sponsorship program has continued to 
concentrate on tobacco smoking control and physical activity.  32% of the racing sponsorship 
budget was allocated to projects promoting tobacco control through the Quit, SmokeFree WA 
and Smarter than Smoking messages.  Overall 16 racing organisations received sponsorship 
which promoted tobacco smoking control, including Motorcycling Australia WA whose 
sponsorship reach included an additional 15 motorcycle clubs. 
 
Sponsorship of the international Telstra Rally to promote the Quit message marked a 
milestone in Australian motorsport, in that for the first time the organisers did not apply to the 
Federal Government for a tobacco advertising exemption.  The sponsorship was well received 
by the public and all the international rally teams conformed with the sponsorship 
requirements. 
 
36% of racing sponsorship funds were also directed towards physical activity promotion, 
including sponsorship of the WA Country Trotting Association which reached an additional 14 
clubs in country venues. 
 
Awareness levels of the tobacco smoking and physical activity messages has remained high 
at over 75%. 
 
The risk factors of alcohol and nutrition have been targeted through the remaining racing 
sponsorship projects, such as the Respect Yourself Forest Rally and metropolitan, provincial 
and country turf racing clubs. 
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2. Getting to the Right People 
 
Populations that experience social and economic disadvantage have greater risk of serious 
illness and premature death than most advantaged socio-economic groups.  It is vital for 
health promotion to influence change to support improved health outcomes for those most in 
need.  This involves delivering health promotion in those settings where people, live, work and 
play. 
 
 

Key goals 2.1 Focus on population groups in whom health inequalities exist 
while ensuring that priority areas are addressed. 
 

 2.2 Utilise and expand settings that provide access to identified 
target groups. 

 
 
PRIORITY TARGET GROUPS 
 
Healthway has continued to focus on key settings and population groups where health 
inequalities exist.  Key population groups include young people and particularly those who 
experience social inequality.  Priority populations for Healthway are as follows: 
 

Priority Populations 
Youth 
Indigenous people 
Rural and remote communities 
Groups disadvantaged due to income or education 
Groups with low health status 

 
In each of Healthway’s program areas, there has been a continued focus on getting to the 
right people.  In 2002-2003 Healthway has worked to support changes which impact on the 
health outcomes of all of these groups and ensure we deliver health promotion in the settings 
where these populations live, work and play. 
 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 
 
GENERAL 
 
To encourage applications for grants and sponsorships to focus on priority populations, 
Healthway has endeavoured to ensure that relevant groups are fully aware of the funding 
opportunities and the mechanisms for applying.  To this end, regional workshops have been 
run in the Kimberley and the website is continually updated to ensure relevancy. 
 
One of Healthway’s newsletters in the past year also focused on the issue of rural health. 
 
The high priority populations of youth, Indigenous populations, rural and remote communities 
as well as those who are disadvantaged and have lower health status continue to be a focus 
for Healthway and applicants are directed to these populations in the application forms. 
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In 2002-2003 the Board approved funding for a one-year Indigenous Evaluator position to 
work with the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit and with the Kulunga research network at the 
Institute for Child Health Research. This position will provide evaluation support for a number 
of Healthway-funded Indigenous health promotion projects and sponsorships, as well as 
increasing capacity for evaluation among Indigenous health professionals.  
 
Another major initiative progressed this year was the Aboriginal Imaging project, co-ordinated 
by a group based at Murdoch University. The project is broadly based on a very successful 
project in Victoria and is trialling three different local initiatives, in Broome, Roebourne and in 
Perth, focusing on building positive images of Aboriginal people. 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Youth have been the focus of many of the projects funded through the health promotion 
program, including the 21 Smart Schools Grants which support tobacco control initiatives at 
the school and community level.  Interestingly, rural youth are the specific focus of the majority 
of these grants, with 15 funded to either country (13) or regional (2) schools. 
 
Also focusing on youth, the now internationally recognised ‘Smarter than Smoking’ project has 
continued to break new ground during the year, by trialling creative approaches to engage 
young people through E-Marketing strategies such as using ‘on-line’ and text-messaging 
initiatives.  The Smarter than Smoking on-line competition, run in conjunction with Dolly 
magazine, was the winner in the Innovative Media Strategy category of the 2003 WA 
Campaign Brief Awards. 
 
The SMOOCH project funded to the Family Planning Association of WA focuses on 
Indigenous young people in the area of sexual health education for adolescents aged between 
11 and 14 years.  During the year the project has successfully disseminated culturally 
appropriate sexual health training for indigenous communities, supported by a small grant 
scheme. 
 
23 of the 57 health promotion projects funded this year were targeted to rural and remote 
communities (including capacity building and LEAP Conference scholarships), with a further 
15 projects targeting the Indigenous population. 
 
Rural Indigenous people and people from CALD backgrounds have been the focus of ‘The 
Drowning Prevention Project’ funded to the Royal Life Saving Society Australia of WA 
(RLSSAWA).  This project aims to extend the RLSSAWA ‘Swim and Survive’ program to 
people from non English-speaking backgrounds, with the aims of encouraging participation 
and addressing the high rates of drowning among some of these groups. 
 
Health promotion project grants have been provided in the Kimberley, Pilbara and Great 
Southern Regions and a major program entitled ‘Making Diabetes a Front Page issue’ has 
been pilot tested by the Diabetes Association of WA in the Geraldton and Bunbury regions. 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
Four of the seven starter grants funded in this year’s round focus on priority target populations 
for Healthway’s work.  These projects are ‘Measuring the relationship between population 
health and the social environment in Carnarvon’ to Dr Marisa Gilles and ‘Increasing healthy 
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lifestyles among people with intellectual disability’ to Dr A.C. Page, both at The University of 
WA; ‘Analysing factors that influence primary school children to bully others’ to Ms Sharyn 
Burns , ‘Formative study of aggression prevention and reduction in junior primary school 
children’ to Associate Professor Donna Cross, both at Curtin University of Technology.  
 
In the research project grants, four of the eight grants awarded this year focus on children or 
young people, and one focuses on Indigenous ‘at risk’ young people. 
 
The first Indigenous Scholarship was awarded to Ms Lynette Rodriguez from The University of 
Western Australia, who will be exploring ‘Role Models, Mentors & Heroes: an exploration of 
the journeys of Aboriginal youth through post-compulsory education and training’. 
 
The Visiting Fellow for 2003 was awarded to the Combined Universities Centre for Rural 
Health to bring Professor Spenser Havlick to Western Australia.  Professor Havlick is from the 
College of Architecture and Planning at the University of Colorado, Boulder USA and his 
research interests include researching, promoting and implementing health and wellness 
programs related to transport, community design, hazards and regional education.  His 
program will have a strong rural focus, and visits are planned to a number of different regions 
throughout WA. 
 

SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
The Sport Advisory Committee continued to encourage and support applications for 
sponsorship which focused on population groups in whom health inequalities exist.  
 
In 2002-2003 projects with a capacity to reach young people remained a priority, particularly 
those with a focus on youth participation, with around 97% of the Sport Sponsorship Program 
budget allocated to projects that had some involvement by children and young people.  
 
Sponsorship of the WA Institute of Sport Talent Search Program resulted in over 10,000 
young high school students undergoing fitness testing and being exposed to the Smarter than 
Smoking message. This program has grown significantly with the aid of Healthway’s 
sponsorship and now has some 36 high schools involved annually.  
 
The Smarter than Smoking message has also been promoted to young people through many 
of the State Sport Association junior development program sponsorships. Sports with large 
numbers of junior participants such as football and netball, have enthusiastically promoted this 
important message for a number of years, as have golf and squash. The renewal of the 
Hockey WA sponsorship during the year was also seen as an opportunity to reach this sport’s 
large junior base with the Smarter than Smoking message.  
 
80% of approved sponsorship was allocated to projects with a statewide or specific country 
focus. 
 
Two rounds of the Healthy Club Sponsorship Program were funded during the report period. In 
total 411 applications were received and 354 were recommended for sponsorship with 42% of 
these clubs being country based. An evaluation of the 2001 and 2001-2002 rounds of the 
Healthy Club Sponsorship Program showed that the program has been successful in 
achieving healthy change through the adoption of policies and practices at the club level. In 
total the sponsored clubs catered for over 50,000 playing members. More than 80% of these 
clubs produced a written health policy and all indicated a ban on smoking indoors had been 
achieved. 
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While the total number of applications targeting indigenous people remains relatively small, 
Healthway continued to assist most of the key Sports organisations with programs delivering 
sporting opportunities to indigenous people in Western Australia.  
 
Sponsorship of the Department of Sport and Recreation’s Indigenous Sport Program has 
ensured the statewide network of Indigenous Sport Development Officers has access to 
program resources as well as education and training support. In addition to increasing sport 
and recreation options for Aboriginal people, the sponsorship also promoted the important 
Smarter than Smoking message to Indigenous communities.  
 
Continued sponsorship of Garnduwa Amboorny Winan in the Kimberley and the Geraldton 
Sporting Aboriginal Corporation in the Mid West region has also delivered structural change 
and a health message presence in these rural and remote settings.  
 
Examples of new sponsorships targeting Healthway priority populations, in particular people 
from non-english speaking background and disadvantaged groups included:  assisting the 
Filipino Australian Sports Association to expand its sports program and offer more options for 
youth; sponsorship of a range of sporting activities conducted in conjunction with Refugee 
Week; supporting a basketball program for inmates of a juvenile detention centre and 
continued sponsorship of a range of activities conducted by WA Disabled Sports Association 
and Riding for the Disabled WA. 
 

ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Young people were the focus of many projects supported and in some cases initiated through 
the Arts Sponsorship Program.  After a period of planning and development a pilot of the 
Rammpaage project, coordinated by the Musician’s Guild of WA, was introduced into 5 
metropolitan and 6 regional communities to support the presentation of drug and alcohol free 
music programs.  Each community received $18,000 to enable live music programs to be 
devised, managed and presented by young people.  Healthway also allocated $45,000 
towards the Western Stars, a youth arts performing showcase to be presented in the Perth 
Concert Hall on 1 November 2003. Modeled on a successful event in NSW, well known 
entertainer Rolf Harris has agreed to be the patron of the event which aims to create 
opportunities for young people to develop their creativity and imagination in a professional and 
supportive environment.  
 
$256,500 (10%) was also allocated specifically to 13 indigenous arts and cultural activities 
which provided an opportunity to promote the “Respect Yourself – Respect Your Culture” 
message.  
 
Healthway sponsored a number of touring productions aimed at indigenous audiences such as 
“Own Worst Enemy”, an original production by the Barking Gecko Theatre Company about the 
passion Aboriginal youth have for Australian Rules Football.  Yirra Yaakin continued to provide 
the means for indigenous communities to develop and produce original theatre works and to 
promote Aboriginal culture and health in a positive light.  Productions such as “Kutta Kutta”, 
which addressed issues of family violence, were performed in detention centres, TAFE 
colleges, schools and community centres.  The strong message and innovative approach to 
address family violence was praised by welfare agencies.  As a result, it is anticipated that this 
production will again be presented in the coming year. 
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Projects that had a statewide reach received 39% of Arts Sponsorship Program funds.  In 
addition, Healthway directed some $589,000 (23%) of Arts Sponsorship Funds to support Arts 
projects and initiatives in rural and remote communities - an increase of 1% over the 2001-
2002 allocation.  
 
A number of innovative sponsorships continued to deliver excellent health promotion benefits 
such as Children’s Book Week, involving writers and illustrators visiting schools and public 
libraries.  This provided a vehicle to promote the Safety Rules OK message through Kidsafe 
WA.  34,797 children and 2,141 teachers and parents attended the Children’s Book Week 
events and in most cases had their first contact with living writers who brought to life 
characters from their own books and illustrations. 
 
Another significant Arts Program Sponsorship is the Musica Viva Schools Performance 
Program, which also promotes the Safety Rules OK message through Kidsafe WA.  In 2002-
2003, the program presented 257 concerts by some of the State’s leading musicians in 222 
schools, reaching over 41,757 students.  
 
Nominated by Musica Viva, this sponsorship was selected as a National finalist in the Long 
Term Outstanding Sponsorship Category in the 2003 Australian Financial Review Awards.  
 

RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
A range of events and programs has been supported through the racing sponsorship program 
as part of Healthway’s strategic commitment to reach young people as well as those in remote 
and rural communities. 
 
77% of the racing sponsorship budget was allocated to sponsorships with a statewide reach, 
with a further 10% allocated to projects specifically reaching rural and remote communities.  
Overall 39 racing sponsorships reached rural communities. 
 
The racing sponsorship program has also been pro-active in targeting young people through 
initiatives such as motorcross, junior dragsters and junior sedan racing.  In addition to projects 
with a statewide and all ages focus, 5% of the racing budget was directed to youth target 
markets. 
 
Junior sedan racing appears in particular to have increased in popularity throughout the 
State’s speedway venues.  New speedway organisations sponsored this year have included 
the Ellenbrook and Bibra Lake speedway venues, and in addition, Albany, Manjimup, Collie, 
Augusta-Margaret River and Esperance have been supported by speedway sponsorship.  
Each sponsorship has provided an opportunity to promote the Smarter than Smoking 
messages to this priority group. 
 
Sponsorship of motorcross in the Kimberley has also enabled some Indigenous participation, 
although it has continued to be relatively more difficult to reach this priority group through 
racing programs. 
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3. Sharing the Responsibility 
 
Healthway does not directly deliver health promotion programs but works to promote health 
through a range of settings and organisations including health, sports, arts, racing, recreation, 
community, education and workplaces.  Successful health promotion must engage a number 
of settings and will involve a diverse range of partners. 
 
 

Key goals 3.1 Build strategic alliances with sectors, settings and 
organisations that have the potential to make substantial 
contributions to health gain. 
 

 3.2 Maintain a partnership approach to promoting and improving 
health through health promotion and research projects and 
sponsorships. 

 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 
 
GENERAL 
 
Healthway has continued to seek funding partners such as the Lotteries Commission, 
Department of Sport and Recreation, Department of Health, Rio Tinto and the Office of 
Aboriginal Health with many of our grants and sponsorships.  In addition, partners such as the 
Universities are sought for seminar presentations. 
 
This year, Healthway has continued to work in partnership with nine health agencies to 
implement support sponsorships.  These include the Heart, Cancer and Asthma Foundations 
and the Department of Health Marketing and Campaign Support Branch. 
 
Through Healthway’s membership of the Premier’s Physical Activity Task Force, new 
partnerships have been forged with a range of organisations, for example through Healthway 
representation on the Local Government Working Group. 
 
Local governments are also increasingly sharing the responsibility at the community level in 
delivering a wide range of programs and activities, including providing greater opportunities for 
people in their community to access recreation, arts and cultural activities. 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Organisations which apply to Healthway are encouraged through the health project guidelines 
to seek partners in order to provide expertise and access to a broader skill base for the project 
and opportunities for co-funding. In the interests of encouraging sustainability, co-funding is 
encouraged so that the program may be able to continue after Healthway’s contract has 
ended. 
 
An example of a project which involves partnerships with a range of agencies and some joint 
funding is the Health + Medicine supplement, which receives support from a range of health 
organisations as well as the West Australian newspaper.  An evaluation conducted by the 
Health Promotion Evaluation Unit in 2001 showed that approximately 53% of readers of the 
West are also H+M readers. 
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Funding for two years to the Smoking Cessation Centre for Excellence also supports an 
important project involving a partnership between the Heart Foundation, Cancer Foundation 
and Drug and Alcohol Office. 
 
In addition, Healthway continued to provide administrative support for the School Drug 
Education Project for school grants in drug education.  These grants were made available 
through Commonwealth and State Government support.  During the year 124 applications 
were received and 86 approved illustrating strong ongoing interest in this project. 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
The partnership approach has been encouraged through the Research Program with 
applicants strongly encouraged to include a health promotion practitioner on the research 
team.  This helps ensure that research results are more readily translated into practice once 
the research is completed. 
 
Research teams are also encouraged to form links with health promotion agencies in 
undertaking research projects.  This is particularly important in ensuring the research is 
relevant and again closely linked with practice. 
 
Healthway maintains a mailing list of over 700 interested contacts who receive information 
about upcoming seminars, opportunities for funding and copies of the Action Health 
Newsletter.  Each year Healthway conducts a number of workshops to showcase Healthway 
funded health projects and research, sessions on grant writing and public seminars which 
capitalise on visiting experts in WA. 
 
Action Health is a bi-annual newsletter distributed to the health promotion/public health 
community via email, website and hard copy.  The newsletter aims to link research and 
practice by providing information about new research and project funding, updates on results 
of funded projects and putting researchers and practitioners in touch with current practice and 
visiting experts. 
 
This year Healthway also funded a research study on public attitudes to smoking in hospitality 
venues in partnership with the leading tobacco control agencies in Western Australia.  The 
research demonstrated strong public support for strengthening the legislation in this area. 
 

SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Healthway continues to rely on partnerships with government, local government and 
community organisations to ensure sport development and successful health promotion within 
the sport and recreation sector.  
 
The traditional sport delivery system with its State sporting associations and their network of 
affiliated groups was again a focus of the Sport Sponsorship Program.  Around 60% of the 
total program budget was allocated to projects being conducted within this setting.   
 
Healthway continued its strong involvement in the sport sector in 2002-2003.  610 applications 
were received in the report period with 90% of the successful projects being small community 
level sponsorships of under $5,000.  The Sport Sponsorship Program also continued to have 
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wide appeal with successful organisations representing over 40 different sport types and a 
range of recreation activities and settings. 
 
In 2002-2003 Healthway continued its involvement with local government through sponsorship 
of both one-off events and more structured programs.  Examples included the Be Active Sport 
and Recreation Coordinator Program, operating in four areas of the Wheatbelt, which 
continued to show the benefits of local shires working together, particularly in areas where 
access to facilities and resources was limited.  The program has successfully focused 
attention on sport and recreation issues and also provided country residents with new physical 
activity options. 
 
For example in the Central Midlands area the co-ordinator established a number of walking 
groups including one for parents with prams (‘Wheelie Walkers’) and another for the residents 
of an aged care facility.  All four co-ordinators were also active in local schools, offering 
opportunities to try new sports that had previously not been available. 
 
Increasing physical activity options was also the objective of the City of Swan’s ‘Access All 
Areas’ youth recreation initiative.  Promoting the Be Active message this sponsorship provided 
youth within the City of Swan with access to sport and recreation programs and facilities at no 
cost. 
 
Involvement in initiatives such as the Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce, together with our 
strong working relationship and funding support of many of the key organisations in the sport 
and recreation sector, ensured Healthway not only had a strong presence but was also able to 
effectively use these organisations to achieve health promotion objectives.  
 
A stronger emphasis was also placed during the year on encouraging sponsored groups to 
think and act more positively in terms of their role as health promoters.  For example sporting 
role models can play an important part in the promotion of good health as well as encouraging 
more people to participate.  This approach is evidenced in the Smarter than Smoking Country 
Scholarship Program, where the young sports people receiving scholarships were being used 
to promote sport and health within their local communities. 
 
During the report year Healthway also funded the creation of a Physical Co-ordinator position, 
managed co-operatively by the National Heart Foundation and the Physical Activity Task 
Force.  This position will act as a resource to encourage the development of physical activity 
programs across a wide range of settings and sectors. 
 

ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
The Arts Advisory Committee recognises the importance of partnerships and has engaged all 
the major West Australian arts organisations in assisting with the promotion of health through 
creative, challenging and effectively managed arts activities. 
 
Healthway invited all organisations in receipt of, or requesting more than $20,000, to apply by 
one closing date, August 2002, for activities commencing from 1 January 2003.  This new 
program is known as the Multiple Events and Annual Projects (MEAP) and a total of $1.47 
million was allocated to the 43 organisations involved.  The single closing date was introduced 
to create a more equitable method of assessment and to encourage increased awareness of 
and a focus on Healthway’s objectives. 
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Ongoing partnerships have been established and continued to be developed between the Arts 
Sponsorship Program and key Arts industry agencies including Arts WA, Community Arts WA, 
Country Arts WA and Lotterywest. 
 
In 2002-2003, the Arts Sponsorship Program has been actively engaged with Country Arts WA 
in 3 ongoing programs in the areas of literature and the performing arts including an innovative 
100% Country Control program.  This arts and cultural program aimed at rural youth 
developing their own cultural activities.  Application forms have been devised and prepared in 
the language of young people and the program has proved to be so popular with young people 
that Healthway has recently given approval for it to be introduced into the metropolitan area 
during the remainder of 2003.  
 

RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Throughout the year, the racing sponsorship program has continued to be supported through 
its strong links with the media, in particular through the featuring of trotting and greyhound 
racing events on Access television (Channel 31), racing radio and various local and country 
radio stations. 
 
On three occasions in the past year, Healthway was afforded the opportunity to present to and 
discuss sponsorship and health promotion requirements with country representatives from 
Trotting, Turf and the Speedway Commission.  These were invaluable forums to refocus and 
exchange information on the key directions for Healthway sponsorship. 
 
In addition, a close relationship has continued to be fostered with Police units, for example 
with Bunbury Police who worked collaboratively with representatives from Healthway, the 
Department of Health and the Respect Yourself Forest Rally to ensure that Liquor Licence 
requirements were implemented to the satisfaction of all parties at the highly successful 
Busselton Super Stage of the rally. 
 
Each of the racing codes has maintained good relationships and worked collaboratively with 
the respective health agency representatives to implement innovative support strategies for 
sponsorships.  It is again pleasing to report that representatives from Albany, Port Hedland, 
Northam and Esperance health promotion units lent support for monitoring sponsorships in 
these regions. 
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4. Sustaining the Impact 
 
As an organisation which provides project based funding it is important to build sustainability 
into project development to maximize and prolong the impact of Healthway grants and 
sponsorships. 
 
 

Key goals 4.1 Promote and nurture sustainable health promotion. 
 

 4.2 Ensure organisations which receive grants and sponsorships 
continued to provide health promotion opportunities which 
support and reinforce priority health issues, population 
groups and effectiveness expectations. 
 

 4.3 Ensure Healthway and organisations which receive grants 
and sponsorships optimise opportunities to report on their 
programs. 

 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 
 
GENERAL 
 
This year Healthway has moved towards requiring the larger sponsored organisations to 
formally incorporate health promoting policies and practices into their daily operations, by 
requiring applicants to develop and implement a written and endorsed health policy prior to 
application.  This came into effect from 31st January 2003 for sport, arts and racing 
organisations and from 31st March for organisations receiving health funding.  This will ensure 
the healthy environments currently required for the period of the Healthway sponsorship, will 
be sustained well beyond Healthway’s funding. 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Nine health organisations receiving health promotion project funding of more than $20,000 
have introduced a formally endorsed health policy into their organisation during the year. 
 
Applicants in receipt of health promotion project grants are asked to consider at the time of 
application how their project may be sustained beyond Healthway funding.  For example, the 
Healthway Healthy Community Pilot Projects in Dongara/Denison and Narrogin addressed the 
issue of sustainability with their host agencies – the local shires and public health units, before 
their Healthway funding ended this year. 
 
A further example is the Newborns Asthma Prevention and Smoking project (NAPS), currently 
funded for the dissemination phase, who have addressed the issue of sustainability through 
providing training on smoking issues to key personnel such as ante-natal educators and 
midwives throughout the State. 
 



 

Annual Report 2002-2003  31 

HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
The research grant applicants are encouraged to widely disseminate research results to 
ensure that information is easily accessed and hopefully acted upon. 
 
Over the past 12 years the results of Healthway funded research have been presented at 454 
local seminars, 306 National seminars and 314 International seminars. There have also been 
363 publications of Healthway funded research in referred journals. 
 
An excellent example of sustainability from the research area has been the adoption of the 
“Keep Left” resource by the Smarter than Smoking project.  This resource for school nurses 
was developed and evaluated as part of the ‘Smoking Cessation and Youth’ research project 
at Curtin University of Technology. 
 

SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
All 49 sporting organisations in receipt of sponsorship of over $20,000 developed and 
registered health policies in the past year.  The strategy has helped to ensure that these 
organisations have a stated commitment to the promotion of good health and have standard 
procedures in regards to key health issues. The impact of this approach within ‘State-level’ 
organisations will be measured in 2003-2004. 
 
Since its inception, the Healthy Club Sponsorship program has also ensured almost 270 WA 
sporting clubs have written health policies and practices in place.  
 
11 of 49 (22%) of projects approved for sponsorship over $5,000 received multiple year 
sponsorship contracts.  2 organisations were contracted for 3 years and 9 for 2 years. 
 
In addition to placing a strong emphasis on policy development the Sport Sponsorship 
Program also looked to strengthen requirements for applicants to indicate sustainability 
beyond the duration of sponsorship funding.  The Women’s Healthworks ‘Mall Walking’ 
Project, funded as part of the Be Active Grants Program, is an example of a project that has 
been able to continue beyond the life of Healthway funding.  With the support of community 
partners such as the commercial operators of the mall and local government, the program has 
continued to run at the Whitfords Shopping Centre and Women’s Healthworks are exploring 
the possibility of transferring the concept to other centres. 
 

ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Similarly to Healthway’s other program areas, 42 Arts organisations have completed health 
policies in the areas of smoking, alcohol, nutrition, and sun protection.  Some organisations 
appreciating their responsibilities in other areas have voluntarily prepared policies on duty of 
care, warm up procedures and worksafe practices.  
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RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
All racing organisations in receipt of sponsorship of more than $20,000 have developed and 
implemented written health policies during the year. 
 
In addition, sponsored racing organisations and clubs have continued to implement 
incremental structural change including the extension of smoke free areas in grandstands at 
country and metropolitan speedway tracks, the construction of sun shades at some country 
trotting venues and the introduction of healthier food choices as standard at several country 
turf and trotting venues. 
 
The impact of the sponsorship of five major racing organisations was measured by the Health 
Promotion Evaluation Unit during the year.  On each occasion the evaluation results have 
been shared with the organisations and each has committed to continued reinforcement to 
ensure the health promotion returns are maintained or enhanced. 
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5. Building Capacity for Health 
 
Effective health promotion must build the capacity of individuals, organisations, communities 
and environments so that they can take on and sustain health promotion. 
 
 

Key goals 5.1 Strengthen the capacity of individuals to improve their health. 
 

 5.2 Nurture health promotion skill development and capacity in 
organisations and individuals that see to, or have the 
potential to improve health. 
 

 5.3 Encourage and support the development of community 
capacity to identify and address local health issues. 

   
 5.4 Maintain and extend the building of healthy physical and 

social environments addressing; SmokeFree initiatives; 
healthy food choices; safe alcohol serving practices; sun 
protection measures; sport safe initiatives; access for 
disadvantaged groups; disability access. 

 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 
 
GENERAL 
 
Healthway continues to build capacity for health promotion amongst all constituents through its 
seminars and regional visits, traineeships and scholarships and other capacity building 
initiatives. 
 
The introduction of the Healthy Policy Scheme (see Section 4) has also been important in 
helping to build the capacity for health by putting the health of participants and members 
clearly on the agenda of organisations and increasing their awareness of the factors which 
contribute to a healthier environment. 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Two Capacity Building Scholarships were awarded in 2002-2003 to enable project co-
ordinators and health sponsorship officers to present their work at conferences or attend 
workshops which provided them with valuable skills to assist them in developing work related 
skills. 
 
In addition, Healthway awarded a further 11 special LEAP Capacity Building scholarships to 
support ten rural or remote delegates and one student delegate to attend the State Health 
Promotion Conference in April. The majority of scholarship recipients presented on their work 
at the conference.  
 
A new pilot Leadership in Health Promotion Program was implemented under the co-
ordination of Ms Noni Walker.  This involved seven shortlisted participants in a program of 
coaching and development opportunities to progress their leadership skills in health 
promotion.  The course started in June 2002 and formally ended in May 2003 when 



 

Annual Report 2002-2003  34 

participants reported back on their activities and received their certificates of participation. An 
evaluation of the course is currently being conducted. 
 
Health + Medicine, the health supplement of the West Australian Newspapers has been 
supported again this year.  The supplement has proved to be a popular outlet for health 
organisations around the state as it provides information to the public in a credible and easy 
format, while raising the profile of organisations and the work that they do. 
 
Healthway has again supported the Australian Health Promotion Association for the health 
promotion scholarships and traineeships.  These enable graduates to gain practical health 
promotion experience in health agencies across the state.  This year scholarships were 
awarded to Julia Dick (road safety - Avon Community Health) and Lorna Hurst (child health – 
Fremantle DGP). 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
Capacity building initiatives in the research program include the Visiting Research Fellow 
Program.  This year the Visiting Research Fellow funded is Professor Spenser Havlick from 
the College of Architecture and Planning at the University of Boulder, Colorada in the USA.  
Professor Havlick’s research interests include the impact of community design, transport and 
regional education on health. His visit will provide professional development opportunities for a 
large number of health promotion practitioners and researchers through site visits and 
seminars in metropolitan and country centres. Professor Havlick will also be a keynote 
speaker at the National Physical Activity Conference in Perth in November 2003. 
 
Other programs which have been maintained include Research Scholarships and Fellowships 
Program as well as the Starter Grant Program to which new researchers or experienced 
researchers embarking on new research topics may apply.  Seven starter grants totalling 
$138,083 were awarded this year. 
 
To encourage research grant applicants to support the development of research capacity, 
applicants are required to outline the opportunities their program will provide for capacity 
building.  To date there have been 57 Masters, 65 PhDs awarded and 441 other opportunities 
for professional development arising from Healthway funded research. 
 
Seminars run by Healthway provide opportunities for those involved in Healthway funded 
research and projects to present on work in progress as well as report on finished projects.  
These provide valuable opportunities to develop presentation skills as well as share 
information with peers. Over the last year seminars coordinated by Healthway have included 
‘Tips on applying for research grants’, ‘Physical activity and young people’ and ‘Outcomes 
from the Healthy Communities Projects’. 
 

SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Healthway, in conjunction with the Healthway Sponsorship Advisory Service, has participated 
in a range of training programs and seminars designed to increase the knowledge and skills of 
organisations applying to Healthway for sponsorship and those seeking to better manage the 
sponsorships they have received. 
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During the report period the Healthway Sport Advisory Service delivered some 12 seminars 
covering these issues.  Topics included Sponsorship Management and Reporting, Creating 
Innovative Proposals, Writing Media Releases, Media Matters and Developing and 
Implementing a Project. 
 
Healthway has also encouraged and facilitated increased dialogue and alliances between 
sponsored organisations and the appropriate health agencies and campaigns to ensure that 
the sponsored organisations had access to education and training appropriate to the message 
they were promoting.  For example, the Department of Health and the Smarter than Smoking 
project worked closely to develop strategies and resources and provide training to the 
Department of Sport and Recreation’s Indigenous Sport Development Officers.  These 
Officers operate throughout the State and have successfully introduced smoking restrictions 
and healthy food choices as well as increased physical activity options, even in the most 
remote areas of Western Australia. 
 

ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In June 2003 a seminar involving all organisations participating in the Multi Events and Annual 
Projects (MEAP) was held at the King Street Arts Centre.  56 people representing all the major 
organisations from the Arts community attended.  Presentations were given on the results of 
health promotion evaluations undertaken at Arts, Sports and Racing events.  Organisations 
were also presented with an overview of the current and emerging health priorities following a 
review undertaken by the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit, at The University of WA. 
 
The Arts Advisory Committee recognises the unique capacity of arts activities to inherently 
promote health messages.  In July 2002, the Deckchair Theatre presented the play “We Are 
Family”, based on teenage pregnancy and promoted the Play It Safe message through the 
Family Planning Association.  The script was developed through the actual stories and 
experiences of young women  who also performed in the production.  
 
The highly successful YOH Fest (youth on health drama festival) was presented in Mandurah 
in October 2002.  Students from 58 High Schools throughout WA developed and performed a 
short theatrical work on the topic of mental health and the event Patron, Ernie Dingo, 
entertained the young audiences as Master of Ceremonies.  
 

RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In the past year representatives of Turf and Trotting organisations were encouraged to attend 
marketing and sponsorship development seminars organised through the Healthway Sports 
Advisory Service.  The seminars also provided the opportunity for the representatives to meet 
with and discuss issues and strategies with representatives of sporting and health agencies. 
 
On several occasions, Healthway was also invited to speak at metropolitan and regional 
workshops providing a forum to disseminate key Healthway strategic direction to the 
interested organisations. 
 
In conjunction with the Western Australian Trotting Liaison Officer, a health policy guidelines 
booklet was developed through the National Heart Foundation for country trotting clubs.  It is 
anticipated that these clubs will gradually adopt and endorse a written health policy during the 
next financial year. 
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HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM PROGRAMS – The year in review 
 
Healthway’s health promotion program encompasses a number of areas including: 
 
•  Health Promotion Projects 
•  Health Promotion Research 
•  Promoting Health Through Sponsorship including Sport, Arts and Racing. 
 
Healthway’s definition of health promotion as “the combination of educational and 
environmental supports for action and conditions of living conducive to health” (1) has been 
expanded in the guidelines to indicate that applications to Healthway should “aim to increase 
individual knowledge and skills, and change behaviour and community and organisational 
policies and environments to improve health”. 
 
This acknowledges the importance of viewing the health of people not only as individuals, but 
also taking into account the environment in which they live, work and play. 
 

HEALTH PROMOTION PROJECTS 

Objectives 
 
•  To fund activities related to the promotion of good health in general, with particular 

emphasis on young people. 
 
•  To provide grants to organisations engaged in health promotion programs. 

Tobacco Control Act 1990, Section 22(1)(c) 
 
Health promotion organisations, as well as community based groups, may apply for grants to 
fund new approaches to health promotion and illness prevention that will change community 
attitudes and behaviour and create environments in which good health is encouraged. 
 
Health Advisory Committee 
 Mr Maurice Swanson – (Chairperson) 
 Dr Sharyn Burns (from September 2002) 
 Ms Cathy Campbell (representing Mr Jackson from September 2002) 
 Dr Rosanna Capolingua 
 Dr Vivienne Dawes (until December 2002) 
 A/Prof Billie Giles-Corti (from February 2003) 
 Mr Michael Jackson (until July 2002) 
 Dr Tony Lower (until July 2002) 
 Mr Daniel McAullay 
 Ms Sharon McBride 
 
 
Features of the 2002-2003 Health Promotion Program 
 
Eighty one health promotion project applications were received with 57 being approved for an 
amount of $2.7 million.  Some were funded for up to three years.  Included in this total are the 
multiple year commitments from previous grants. 
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•  41% of funds were allocated to projects specifically addressing children and/or 
adolescents, with 18% to projects for all age groups. 

 
•  84% of the projects have a statewide reach, with 11% of funds exclusively directed to 

projects in country areas and only 5% to exclusively metropolitan based projects. 
 
•  Overall, 61% of the health promotion projects budget has been allocated to the major 

health priority areas in Healthway’s Strategic Plan 2000-2003. 
 
•  Analysis of the distribution of funding by health issue in 2002-2003 shows that over half 

(59%) of the total funding was allocated to the high priority area of tobacco smoking 
control.  Alcohol/drug abuse control received 12% of the funding with sexual health 
receiving 7%.  The allocation to the general area of health promotion (9%) included 
project funding, student scholarships and to support the continuation of the award 
winning Health + Medicine Supplement in The West Australian Newspaper. 

 
•  The cumulative allocation to health promotion projects from 1991-2003 shows that 

tobacco smoking control accounts for 29% of the total allocation with 12% going to 
alcohol/drug abuse control. 

 

HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH 
 
Grants are available for health promotion research which leads to the promotion of good 
health and the prevention of illness in the community.  Healthway encourages innovative 
projects and collaborative research which fosters the sharing of skills and expertise. 

Objectives 
 
•  To fund research relevant to health promotion. 

Tobacco Control Act 1990, Section 22 (1) (f) 
 
 
Health Research Sub-Committee 
 
 Dr Vivienne Dawes (Chairperson to December 2002) 
 Associate Professor Billie Giles-Corti (Chairperson from February 

2003) 
 Dr Valerie Burke (until December 2002) 
 Dr Rina Cercarelli (from June 2003) 
 Dr Greg Hamilton (from January 2003) 
 Dr Brett Hart (until December 2002) 
 Assoc Professor Nadine Henley 
 Professor Stephen Houghton 
 Dr Richard Midford (from January 2003) 
 Dr Elizabeth Milne 
 Assoc Professor Mark Stevenson (until June 2003) 
 
Features of the 2002-2003 Health Promotion Research Program 
 
•  The total research budget for 2002-2003 was over $2.4 million, of which $1,032,248 was 

available for new grants and starter grants. 
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•  In 2002-2003, Healthway earmarked up to $200,000 for topical tobacco research. The 
research included a community survey of adults which included attitudes to smoking 
restrictions in public places and support for strengthening controls on the sale and 
marketing of tobacco products. A second piece of work used a novel approach to elicit 
the views of adult club-goers to the strengthening of smoking regulations in these 
premises. 

 
•  The remaining monies were committed to previously allocated multiple year grants and 

capacity building opportunities. 
 
•  25 project grant applications were received with 21 proceeding through to external 

assessment and 8 being approved for funding. 
 
•  In the starter grants program 23 applications were received, with 7 being approved for a 

total of $138,083. 
 
•  When considering the 2002-2003 budget allocations, it is pleasing to note the funding to 

the high priority areas identified within Healthway’s Strategic Plan.  This included 38% of 
the total allocation being directed to physical activity promotion research, 26% towards 
research in mental health promotion and 13% to research in tobacco smoking control. 

 
•  Of particular note is the amount of funding which has been allocated to research projects 

specifically addressing Indigenous communities.  Over the last year, Healthway has 
allocated over $422,170 or 18% of the total research budget to Indigenous health 
promotion research.  The allocation to Indigenous research continues to increase each 
year, reflecting Healthway’s commitment to funding health promotion research in 
Indigenous communities. 

 
•  Two Healthway Scholarships were awarded in 2002-2003 increasing the total number of 

Healthway scholarships provided to date to 21.  The two successful candidates were Ms 
Melis from Edith Cowan University for ‘Adolescent grief research to create a prevention 
strategy to address the needs of youth experiencing grief or who may experience grief as 
an adolescent’ and Mr MCCormack from The University of Western Australia for 
‘Modelling of environmental and psychosocial determinants of physical activity 
behaviour’. 

 
•  The first Indigenous Research Scholarship was awarded to Ms Rodriguez from The 

University of Western Australia for ‘Role Models, Mentors & Heroes: an exploration of the 
journeys of Aboriginal youth through post-compulsory education and training’. 
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PROMOTING HEALTH THROUGH SPONSORSHIP 
 
Objectives 
 
•  To support sporting and arts activities which encourage healthy lifestyles and advance 

health promotion programs. 
Tobacco Control Act 1990, Section 22 (1) (c) 

 
The Sponsorship Program includes sponsorship of sport, arts and racing activities which 
encourage healthy lifestyles and advance health promotion programs. 
 
The health promotion aspects of the sponsorship program are undertaken by key health 
agencies which act as “support sponsors” or alternatively in the case of smaller value 
sponsorships by kits administered by Healthway. 
 
An internal review of Healthway’s Health Support Sponsorship Program was completed in 
March 2003.  The review confirmed that the program is an extremely effective and valued arm 
of Healthway activity.  It showed that working through health agencies as support sponsors 
provides the opportunity to add credibility and synergy through links between sponsorships 
and health promotion programs and campaigns. 
 

Major health messages used in sponsorship during 2002-2003 
 

 

 Be Active – Cycle Instead 

 Be Active Every Day 

 Drug Aware 

 Drug Free 

 Enjoy Healthy Eating 

 Healthy Community Event 

 Make Time To Talk 

 Play It Safe 

 QUIT 

 Respect Yourself / 100% Control 

 Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture 

 Smarter than Smoking 

 SmokeFree WA 

 Sport Safe 

 SunSmart 

 Swim Fit Asthma Fit 
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IMPACT OF THE SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
 
Comprehensive evaluation of the sponsorship program continued through the Health 
Promotion Evaluation Unit at The University of Western Australia.  In the past year the Unit 
undertook another ‘Sponsorship Monitor’ consisting of audience surveys at events from 37 
major sponsorship projects. In addition, the Unit conducted a study to test the effectiveness of 
two new innovative sponsorship strategies at a major sporting ground. 
 
A summary of the results of the research follows. 
 

SPONSORSHIP MONITOR RESULTS 
 
Healthway has an ongoing evaluation program which monitors the effectiveness of major 
sponsorships.  This involves collecting data from random samples at Healthway sponsored 
events where the amount of money allocated in support sponsorship is over $12,000 for sport 
projects and over $7,000 for arts and racing projects.  The most recent results reported in 
2003 show the following: 
 
•  Health message awareness at Healthway sponsored events has been maintained at 

over 70% over several years. 
 
•  Message comprehension remains high with over 68% of those who were aware of the 

message correctly understanding it. 
 
•  Some 16% of the total sample were sufficiently stimulated to indicate they intended to 

take some relevant action as a result of exposure to a health message. 
 
As in previous studies, this confirms the effectiveness of sponsorship as a strategy to achieve 
high prompted awareness, comprehension and acceptance of a health message at sport, arts 
and racing events.  It also confirms that sponsorship can achieve self-reported behaviour 
change. 
 

HEALTHIER ENVIRONMENTS 
 
One of the strengths of Healthway’s sponsorship program and a unique feature is its ability to 
use sponsorship as leverage to achieve healthier environments in sport, arts and racing 
organisations. 
 
Encouraging organisations to adopt healthier policies and practices is one of the ways to 
ensure sustainable change.  Once a policy has been implemented, there is little likelihood of 
the organisation abolishing this, even if Healthway sponsorship ends.  Today, the major 
sporting, arts and racing venues not only implement smokefree policies in all indoor areas, but 
also in the vast majority of their outdoor seated areas as well. 
 
In addition to smoke-free environments, Healthway has encouraged organisations to adopt a 
range of healthier policies and practices over the past few years.  This year, further progress 
has been made in this area by making it a formal requirement that all organisations applying 
for more than $20,000 must implement and endorse written health policies.  After a 12-month 
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lead-in period, this requirement came into force on 31 January 2003 for sport, arts and racing 
organisations, and on 31 March 2003 for health organisations.  
 
As a result, major organisations are now required to address sun protection, alcohol and other 
drugs, sport safe, food and nutrition as well as smokefree, in a formal policy document.  This 
initiative aims to establish sustainable policies and guidelines, further enhancing the health of 
organisation members as well as the wider community.  An evaluation of these health policies 
is planned for the second half of 2003, conducted by the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit. 
 

NEW PROMOTIONAL STRATEGIES 
 
A field study conducted by the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit during the year examined the 
impact of two innovative promotional strategies at Perth Glory home games on health 
message awareness among adult audiences.  The first strategy involved two types of stickers 
being placed on the fronts of seats and the second strategy involved moving signage in the 
form of a scooter towing a trailer with the ‘Quit’ message and logo around the ground and 
surrounding streets. Both strategies showed positive results and underlined the potential of 
innovative, novel strategies to increase health message awareness and salience.   
 
 
Features of the 2002-2003 Sponsorship Program 
 
The sponsorship program received applications which requested amounts of nearly $14 
million in the past year.  Some 958 new applications were received during the year with 712 or 
74% being supported for a total of $7,809,837.  This sum does not include multi-year projects 
funded in previous years. 
 
The distribution of health messages for the year was as follows (in terms of percentage of the 
support sponsorship budget $1,098,766). 
 
 Tobacco Smoking Control 37% 
 Cancer Prevention 12% 
 Alcohol and Other Drug Misuse 9% 
 Physical Activity Promotion 13% 
 Good Nutrition Promotion 14% 
 Health Promotion 3% 
 Injury Prevention 6% 
 Sexual Health 2% 
 Mental Health Promotion 1% 
 
Sponsorship kits administered by Healthway accounted for 212 sponsorships while the 
remaining 388 were managed by the health agencies. 
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Health Agencies 
 
Healthway engaged the following health agencies to manage sponsorships: 
 
 Asthma WA 
 Cancer Foundation 
 Department of Planning and Infrastructure (formerly Department of Transport) 
 Family Planning Association 
 Department of Health 
 Kidsafe 
 National Heart Foundation 
 Relationships Australia 
 Sports Medicine Association 
 
A number of regional Public Health Units including Northam, Albany, Kalgoorlie, Kimberley, 
and Pilbara have also been particularly valuable in implementing country sponsorships. 
 
The assistance and support from the various agencies and the officers involved again ensured 
that the sponsorship program operated in an efficient and effective manner with excellent 
health promotion returns being achieved. 
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SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Healthway sponsors sport and recreation programs which encourage development and 
participation as well as events, competitions and special programs which offer opportunities to 
promote health. In accordance with S26 (8) of the Tobacco Control Act 1990, not less than 
30% of the total funds received by Healthway were paid to sport organisations in 2002-2003, 
amounting to $5.105m. 
 
 
Sport Advisory Committee 
 Mr Bob Welch – (Chairperson) 
 Mr Les Atkins (from April 2003) 
 Ms Christine Hardwick (until April 2003) 
 Ms Julia Knapton 
 Mr Greg McLennan 
 Mr Kyle March 
 Mr Graeme Quelch 
 Mr Dean Solly 
 
Features of the 2002-2003 Sport Sponsorship Program 

 
•  The Sport Advisory Committee met six times and reviewed 618 applications. Of these, 

481 or 79% were approved. 
 
•  538 applications or 88% of those received were requesting sponsorship of $5,000 or less 

and of these, 81% were allocated sponsorship. 
 
•  12% of Sports Sponsorship funds was allocated to club level organisations through the 

$5,000 and Less and Healthy Club sponsorship programs. The Healthy Club 
sponsorship program attracted 411 applications through two rounds in 2002-2003, of 
which 354 (86%) were approved. 

 
•  In the past year distribution by Sport Category was as follows: 

 
Participation – Club Based   18% 
Participation – Schools   17% 
Participation – Community   5% 
Development – Players   11% 
Development – Coaches/Officials   3% 
Development – Country Sport/Recreation   2% 
Development – Talent   7% 
Outdoor Recreation/Extreme Sport   2% 
Local Competition   6% 
Intra State Level Events   4% 
Major/Hallmark Events   9% 
Elite Teams   6% 
Miscellaneous   10% 

 
•  In line with the Healthway Strategic Plan, which identifies young people as a priority 

population for health promotion, projects dedicated to junior sport and recreation 
activities received some 61% of the funds allocated.  
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•  Analysis by gender shows that 55% of funds went to activities primarily involving male 
participation, with 45% being allocated to activities involving predominantly females. 

 
•  The vast majority of funds were allocated to programs with statewide influence (72%) 

while 8% was directed solely to country and 20% to metropolitan specific activities. 
 
•  Sport participation and development activities received the largest proportion of funds 

(around 70%) and around 10% of funds were allocated to promotional sponsorships. 
 
 
ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 

 
Healthway sponsors art activities which provide opportunities for health promotion to and 
through a wide range of audiences.  In accordance with S26 (8) of the Tobacco Control Act 
1990, Arts organisations receive not less than 15% of the total funds disbursed by Healthway. 

 
 

Arts Advisory Committee 
 Ms Leith Taylor - (Chairperson) 
 Mr Marcus Canning 
 Mr Peter Carroll (from March 2003) 
 Ms Vicki Caulfield (until February 2003) 
 Ms Annette Davis (from March 2003) 
 Ms Heather Gee (until December 2002)  
 Ms Carol Innes (from February 2003) 
 Ms Sandra Krempl (until December 2002) 
 Mr Paul O’Connor 
 Mr Steve Shaw 
 
 

Features of the 2002-2003 Arts Sponsorship Program 
 
•  In 2002–2003 $2.55m was committed through the Arts Sponsorship Program. 
 
•  Arts organisations applied for sponsorships amounting to $4.09 million, indicating 

ongoing demand for sponsorship well beyond Healthway’s funding capacity. 
 
•  The Arts Advisory Committee met 7 times to consider 296 applications for sponsorship.  

Of the 296 applications, 196 applications were approved (66%). Of these, 104 were for 
amounts over $5,000 and 92 less than $5,000. 

 
•  Over 46% of the applications received were for amounts under $5,000 and 67% of these 

applications received support. 
 
•  Projects that had a state-wide reach received 39% of arts sponsorship funds.  In 

addition, a total of 21% Arts sponsorship funds were allocated toward programs 
involving exhibitions, theatre and music performances as well as community arts 
activities and festivals that took place outside the metropolitan area. 



 

Annual Report 2002-2003  45 

 
•  Of all the Arts projects funded, 35% specifically targeted children or adolescents through 

direct participation or audience reach. 
 
•  Of the Arts budget 59% or $1.47m was allocated to organisations who received $20,000 

or more through a new Multi Events and Annual Program (MEAP) category of 
sponsorship. 

 
•  During 2002-2003 distribution of sponsorship by arts category was as follows: 
 
 

Distribution of funding by Arts Category 2002-2003 
 

 Multi disciplinary 34% 
 Music 25% 
 Theatre 22% 
 Dance  9% 
 Visual Arts 6% 
 Literature 3% 
 Film 1% 
 
•  As in previous years, audience surveys showed that young people who attend modern 

music events have a higher prevalence of smoking and other unhealthy behaviours 
compared with the general public and audiences at other Healthway sponsored 
activities.  As a result, Healthway has continued a proactive approach to supporting live 
music activities involving young people. Almost 10% or $244,000 of the Arts 
Sponsorship Program budget was allocated to rock music activities in 2002-2003. 

 
 
RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Racing includes horse racing and pacing, dog racing and motorcar and motorcycle racing.  
Healthway’s sponsorships include race days or individual races, season programs, 
international, national or state championships, speciality and promotional events. 

 
Racing Advisory Committee 
 Mr Ray Della-Polina (Chairperson) 
 Ms Joanna Anderson 
 Mr Brian Lewis (from May 2003) 
 Mr Bob Naylor 
 Mr Clive Nelthorpe  
 Mr Jon Nichols (until March 2003) 
 Mr Reg Page (from May 2003) 
 Mr Rod Slater (until March 2003) 

 
Features of the 2002-2003 Sport Sponsorship Program 
 
•  The Racing Advisory Committee met six times and considered 39 applications of which 

33 or 85% were supported. 
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•  Racing sponsorships were distributed across four key health issues: 
 
  Physical Activity 36% 
  Tobacco Smoking Control 32% 
  Good Nutrition 29% 
  Alcohol/Drug Abuse Control 3% 
 
 

Distribution of funding by Racing Category 2002-2003 
 

 Turf Racing 29% 
 Trotting  29% 
 Speedway / Drags 22% 
 Motorcycles 3% 
 Greyhounds 6% 
 Classic Car Rally 10% 
 Other 1% 
 
•  Some 82% of the racing budget was allocated to state-wide activities (an increase of 

23% over the previous year) while 11% and 6% went to metropolitan and country 
specific activities respectively. 

 
•  Overall there were 39 sponsorships in remote and rural areas of Western Australia. 
 
•  The Health Promotion Evaluation Unit conducted research which demonstrated 

awareness levels of the health messages that are being maintained for the first time 
across all the major racing organisations. 

 
•  Regional Public Health Units have continued to be involved in overseeing racing 

sponsorships. 
 
•  Additional partnerships were developed with stakeholders such as the Swan Brewery 

and the Policy in Country areas. 
 
•  Due to Healthway’s sponsorship, the Telstra rally was free of all tobacco advertising.  

This was a milestone in Australian motor sport. 
 
•  The development of written health policies with the major racing organisations was 

smoothly implemented. 
 
•  Over 90% of racing sponsorships were visited by Healthway representatives. 
 
•  The 2002 Statewest Credit Society Award for Marketing was awarded to Healthway for 

the sponsorship of the QUIT Motorplex. 
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CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
Objective 
 
“To contribute to the achievement of Healthway’s goals, by providing high level support that is 
aligned to the needs and strategic objectives of the organisation.” 
 
Corporate Services continued to provide support to the Healthway program areas and 
undertook a number of projects to improve infrastrucutre support and improve compliance 
procedures during the year.  These included a review of support sponsorship contract 
procedures and workflow analysis resulting in improved streamlined approaches. 
 
Healthway’s employee demographics at 30 June 2003 
 
Healthway has a staff complement of 14.0 FTEs comprising a fair gender mix as depicted 
below.   
 

Level Female (ftes) Male (ftes) 
 2001-2002 2002-2003 2001-2002 2002-2003 
Level 1 1.0 1.0 - - 
Level 2 1.5 1.5 - - 
Level 3 1.0 1.0 - - 
Level 4 1.0 2.0 2.5 1.5 
Level 5 1.0 1.0 - - 
Level 6 - - 1.0 1.0 
Level 7 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 
Level 9 1.0 1.0 - - 
Class 1 1.0 - - 1.0 
Total 8.5 8.5 5.5 5.5 

 
 
Equal Opportunity and Valuing Diversity 
 
Healthway actively adopts a practice of encouraging diversity and adheres to equal 
opportunity principles.  This continues to be reflected in Healthway’s values, policies, in its 
workforce and in the composition of its Board and Advisory Committees. 
 
During the year staff were provided with a workshop revisiting equal opportunity principles and 
legislation.  This included raising awareness and was followed by updating Healthway’s 
policies, particularly to reflect amendments to the Equal Opportunity Act, which make it 
unlawful to discriminate against people on the basis of their sexual orientation and gender 
history. 
 
In addition, Healthway has continued to prioritise grants and sponsorships which encapsulate 
valuing diversity principles and concepts.  These include the funding of an Aboriginal evaluator 
and funding various indigenous health promotion grants and sports programs. 
 
Work has commenced on assessing planned outcomes of Healthway’s EEO and Diversity 
Management Plan 2000-2004.  A new Plan will be developed and incorporated into 
Healthway’s operations during 2003-2004. 
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Employee Relations/Payroll  
 
In January 2003 all staff agreed to transfer from Healthway’s Workplace Agreement 2000 to 
the Government Officers Salaried Allowances and General Conditions Agreement 2002. 
 
Healthway also transferred to Concept being the new Government payroll and human 
resources system provider by 30 June 2003.  
 
Training and Development  
 
During the year all staff were provided with the opportunity for structured training on changes 
to the IT operating environment which included retraining of software functions and features 
for incorporation in day to day usage. 
 
Healthway staff were also offered the opportunity along with a range of health promotion 
professionals to participate in an innovative pilot Leadership in Health Promotion program, 
funded by Healthway.  Healthway executive also participated in components of the program 
that were relevant to their professional development. 
 
Employee Safety, Health and Welfare  
 
There were no workers’ compensation claims in 2002-2003.  
 
During the year Healthway has progressed a review of its occupational health to ensure 
adherence to the Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984.  Healthway also  
continued to implement strategies to reduce the risk of injury.  Two new Occupational, Health 
and Safety representatives were appointed through an election process in May 2003 and they 
will be attending appropriate training. 
 
The employee assistance program continued to be promoted through Healthway. It provides 
confidential counselling services to staff and their immediate family.  
 
Corporate Governance 
 
Healthway has continued its commitment to uphold its Corporate Governance principles and 
framework in all its practices, including personal decision making conduct and compliance with 
legislative requirements. 
 
During the year corporate governance within Healthway was examined by its internal auditors 
who concluded that there is an adequate corporate governance framework within the 
organisation. 
 
Some minor improvements were recommended, including a) expanding the terms of reference 
of Healthway’s Finance and Audit Committee to include corporate governance matters and b) 
undertake an assessment of the Board operations.  Implementation of the recommendations 
wase endorsed by the Board and is progressing. 
 
As part of Corporate Governance four sponsorship or grant recipients were randomly audited 
during the year to ensure that internal controls exist to ensure that Healthway funds are 
acquitted appropriately. 
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Risk Management 
 
Risk management continued to be an integral component of management and staff planning 
and decision making during 2002-2003.  Risk Cover representatives provided advice to 
Healthway management with regard to having risk management processes and following 
endorsement by the Healthway Board, these improvements have been implemented across all 
programs. 
 
Internal audit also examined the role of risk management, and reported that adequate risk 
management practices were in place. However, Healthway’s risk management approach will 
be expanded to include areas such as organisational culture and this will be addressed during 
2003-2004. 
 
Information Technology (IT) 
 
During the year a number of IT initiatives were progressed and implemented including: 
 

•  significant enhancements in IT security for both the external and internal 
environment including moving to a new platform of XP; 

•  upgrade in operating environment including the Grant Management System 
database; 

•  introduction of remote IT access for Healthway staff;  
•  introduction of website tracking software; and 
•  re-structuring the internal IT hierarchy reflecting access levels of users.  

 
Internal auditors identified that IT security provided adequate controls, however recommended 
some minor improvements which are being progressively implemented.  
 
Progress is also being made to upgrading and expanding the Healthway website to allow the 
user to easily navigate through the site and provide more relevant up to date material.  This 
new site will be launched during 2003-2004.  
 
Records Management 
 
Staff resources have been directed to ensuring compliance with the State Records Act 2000, 
including the preparation of a Records Plan by March 2004. 
 
Healthway, has enhanced its records language control by implementing AAA Thesaurus which 
is widely-used in the public sector.  In addition, disaster recovery plans and record procedures 
are being reviewed in accordance with the Act. 
 
Information Statement 
 
The Freedom of Information Act (FOI) ensures that members of the public can access a vast 
majority of records held by Healthway.  Wherever possible Healthway will endeavour to 
provide access to information without the need to submit a formal FOI request. 
 
Submitting an FOI request 
 
In the first instance the enquirer should contact Healthway as it may not be necessary to 
submit a formal FOI request. 
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Should an enquirer wish to proceed with a formal application, then FOI applications must: 
•  be in writing; 
•  provide sufficient information to identify the documents being requested; 
•  provide an Australian address; and 
•  lodge the application with a fee of $33 including GST.   

 
Applicants are promptly acknowledged in writing and informed of the decision within 45 days.  
Should an applicant be dissatisfied with the access decision then the applicant can request an 
internal review of that decision.  The Information Commissioner may also be involved in the 
review as required.   
 
Documents can be inspected on our premises, posted or sent by facsimile.  Additional fees 
may also apply for copying or transcribing information.  These will be charged at cost 
depending on the type and volume of copying required. 
 
Applications and enquiries are directed to the Manager Corporate Services at Healthway. 
 
One FOI application was received in 2002-2003. 
 
Programs for Youth 
 
Young people continued to be one of Healthway’s high priority target groups.   Accordingly, 
Healthway supports the promotion of health and well being of young people through its grants 
and sponsorship programs.  
 
For example, funding through sponsorships has been directed to events targeting young 
people and grants continued to be provided for health promotion and health research relating 
to issues relevant to young people.  These include messages relating to smoking, drug use, 
nutrition and mental health. 
 
During 2002-2003 Healthway approved over $3.8m in funding projects and events relating to 
young people. 
 
The Healthway Board also has a member that represents the Office for Children & Young 
People’s Policy. 
 
Recycling Measures  
 
Waste paper recycling practices are incorporated in the Healthway office which includes the 
use of recycled paper to print draft documents and provision of secure disposal bins and 
recycling bins throughout the office. Waste paper ready for disposal is forwarded to paper 
recycling operators. 
 
Disability Services Plan 2001-2003 
 
The Plan is in its final year with the following key planned outcomes: 
 

•  Ensure that Healthway practices and policies that relate to our services are 
consistent with the above legislation; 

•  Maintain ongoing dialogue with clients about accessibility of buildings and facilities 
to identify any need for improvement, particularly in relation to Heathway 
sponsored events being accessible to people with disabilities;  
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•  Ensure that all Healthway publications, guidelines, grant and sponsorship forms 
and other material is written in clear, concise and plain language and available in 
formats appropriate to people with disabilities; 

•  Provide awareness training to Healthway staff to ensure they are aware of the 
needs of people with disabilities and are equipped with the skills to make 
appropriate provision for them; and 

•  Encourage Healthway’s advisory committees to seek representation of at least one 
person who has professional knowledge of disability issues. 

 
Heathway has implemented these planned outcomes.  A full assessment of measuring the 
achievements will be undertaken at the conclusion of the Plan. 
 
Language Services 
 
Healthway works with a diverse range of customers and recognises the language and cultural 
diversity this presents. 
 
As part of meeting its Language Services Outcomes and reflective of its commitment to 
valuing diversity.  Healthway has disseminated information on the provision of language 
services to its customers as required.  Heathway will produce its material in various languages 
and provide interpreters as requested. 
 
Customer Service 
 
Heathway has continued to actively consult with its customers and stakeholders as part of its 
commitment to customer service and continuous improvement and undertake regular 
assessment of its quality of service and its customer service practices. 
 
As part of his orientation, from January 2003, The Executive Director has met with several of 
Healthway’s customers and stakeholder organisations.  These meetings were very valuable in 
obtaining feedback on Healthway and its operations which has already resulted in some 
review of procedures. 
 
Independent reviews are undertaken by the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit located at The 
University of WA that examine a myriad of areas including customer service provided to 
recipients of sponsorships and grants. 
 
A comprehensive Organisational Survey of sponsorship recipients included questions 
regarding customer service. 
 
The Organisational Survey is conducted every few years and includes a measure of 
Healthway’s business relationships with funded groups.  The 2001 survey found that 12.7% of 
sport, arts and racing organisations and 9.8% of health organisations did not consider 
Healthway’s feedback regarding their funded project to have met their expectations.  
Approximately 16% of funded organisations also indicated that Healthway’s funding 
requirements exceeded what they considered reasonable. 
 
Although the clear majority of funded organisations expressed satisfaction in these areas, a 
follow up study was conducted in 2002, in order to collect more detailed information from this 
small group who had expressed some dissatisfaction.  The follow up study made a number of 
recommendations related to improving communication between Healthway and funded groups 
and streamlining some of Healthway’s administration processes.  Work is progressing on 
addressing some of these concerns. 
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The complaints handling policy and processes were enhanced during the year which was 
promoted to staff through staff meetings and disseminated to customers.   
 
Enabling legislation  
 
Healthway is established as the Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation under Part 3 
of the Tobacco Control Act 1990. 
 
Other written laws that impact upon operations: 
 

Anti-Corruption Commission Act 1988 Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951 
Disability Services Act 1993 
 

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993  

Electoral Act 1907 
 

Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 
1984 

Equal Opportunity Act 1984 Public Sector Management Act 1994 
Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 
 

Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 

Freedom of Information Act 1992 State Records Act 2000 
Government Employees Superannuation Act 
1951 
 

State Supply Commission Act 1991 

Industrial Relations Act 1975 
 

Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 
1981 
Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation 
Amendment Act 1992 

 
Advertising 
 
In compliance with the Electoral Act 1907 Healthway is required to report on expenditure 
incurred in relation to advertising agencies, market research organisations, polling 
organisations, direct mail organisations and media advertising organisations.  These are 
shown as follows: 
 
Advertising Agencies 
 - Market Force  $14,515  
 
Statement of Compliance with Public Sector Standards 
 
In accordance with S31(1) of the Public Sector Management Act 1994, Healthway is required 
to report on the extent of compliance with the Public Sector Standards in Human Resources 
Management, the WA Public Sector Code of Ethics and Healthway’s Code of Conduct. 
 
During the year, weekly staff meetings were utilised as an interactive approach to reinforce 
human resource standards including code of conduct and standards of behaviour.   
 
These sessions were also useful in raising staff awareness of amendments to the Equal 
Opportunity Act that makes it unlawful to discriminate against people on the basis of their 
sexual orientation and gender history.  Staff were also made aware of the Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 2003. These changes have been integrated into Healthway’s policy documents 
and practices. 
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Heathway’s performance management system was reviewed and enhanced with more focus 
placed on the achievement of outcomes aligned to the Strategic Plan, job requirements and 
competencies and professional training and development. 
 
No applications for breach of standards or ethical codes were received in 2002-2003. 
 
In the administration of Healthway, I have complied with the Public Sector Standards in 
Human Resources Management, the WA Public Sector Code of Ethics and our Code of 
Conduct. 
 
 

 
 
Neil Guard 
Executive Director 



 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

 

4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005  Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664 

    

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
WESTERN AUSTRALIAN HEALTH PROMOTION FOUNDATION 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 
 
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, 

(i) the controls exercised by the Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 
provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of 
moneys, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities 
have been in accordance with legislative provisions; and 

(ii) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly in 
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory 
professional reporting requirements in Australia and the Treasurer’s Instructions, 
the financial position of the Foundation at June 30, 2003 and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 
Scope 
The Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation’s Role 
The Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation is responsible for keeping proper 
accounts and maintaining adequate systems of internal control, preparing the financial 
statements, and complying with the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 (the Act) 
and other relevant written law. 
 
The financial statements consist of the Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of 
Financial Position, Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
Summary of my Role 
As required by the Act, I have independently audited the accounts and financial statements 
to express an opinion on the controls and financial statements. This was done by looking at 
a sample of the evidence. 
 
An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements is 
error free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises that an audit does not examine all 
evidence and every transaction. However, my audit procedures should identify errors or 
omissions significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users of the financial 
statements. 
 

 
D D R PEARSON 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
October 22, 2003 
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CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The accompanying financial statements of the Western Australian Health Promotion 
Foundation have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial 
Administration and Audit Act 1985 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the 
financial transactions for the year ending 30 June 2003 and the financial position as at 30 
June 2003. 
 
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the 
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 
 

 
 

Ray Della-Polina 
Chairperson 
 
 
 
 

 
Leith Taylor 
Deputy Chairperson 
 
 
 

 
Lina Barbato 
Manager, Corporate Services 
 
 
 
22 August 2003 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

For the year ended 30 June 2003 
          
          
  Note 2003   2002 
COST OF SERVICES   $   $ 
          
Expenses from ordinary activities        
Employee expenses 2 1,102,866   969,885 
Depreciation 3 89,674   85,174 
Grants and sponsorships 4 15,942,928   15,466,677 
Administrative expenditure 5 483,617   588,127 
Accommodation expenses 6 138,648   119,540 
Other expenses from ordinary activities 7 3,295   623 
Total cost of services   17,761,028   17,230,026 
     
Revenues from ordinary activities     
Interest  671,803   611,432 
Other revenue from ordinary activities 8 584,464   601,309 
Total revenues from ordinary activities  1,256,267   1,212,741 
     
NET COST OF SERVICES   16,504,761   16,017,285 
      
REVENUES FROM GOVERNMENT     
Output appropriations 9 16,517,000   16,114,000 
Resources received free of charge  20,000   20,000 
Total revenues from Government   16,537,000   16,134,000 
      
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS  32,239   116,715 
      
TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY OTHER THAN THOSE 
RESULTING FROM TRANSACTIONS WITH WA STATE 
GOVERNMENT AS OWNERS   32,239    116,715 
     
     

 
 
 

The Statement of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

At 30 June 2003 
          
     
  Note 2003   2002 
  $   $ 
     
Current Assets      
Cash assets 10 7,084,552   6,815,913 
Receivables 11 239,374   144,340 
Other assets 12 1,365   4,808 
       
Total Current Assets   7,325,291   6,965,061 
      
Non-Current Assets      
Property, plant, equipment and vehicles 13 449,916   460,992 
     
Total Non-Current Assets   449,916   460,992 
       
TOTAL ASSETS   7,775,207   7,426,053 
      
     
Current Liabilities     
Payables 14 6,576,903   6,324,641 
Provisions 15 116,579   85,336 
Other liabilities 16 36,772   44,362 
     
Total Current Liabilities   6,730,254   6,454,339 
     
Non-Current Liabilities      
Provisions 15 61,482   20,482 
     
Total Non-Current Liabilities   61,482   20,482 
       
TOTAL LIABILITIES   6,791,736   6,474,821 
       
NET ASSETS  983,471   951,232 
      
EQUITY     
     
Accumulated surplus 17 983,471   951,232 
      
TOTAL EQUITY   983,471   951,232 

 
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the year ended 30 June 2003 
             

    
 

Note 2003   2002 
        Inflows    Inflows 
        (Outflows)    (Outflows) 
       $  $ 
      
Cashflows from Government         
       
Output  Appropriations   16,517,000   16,114,000 
Net cash provided by government   16,517,000   16,114,000 
        
Utilised as follows:       
        
Cashflows from Operating Activities      
Payments      
Employee costs   (1,038,213)  (1,003,526)
Supplies and services   (659,846)  (499,003)
Grants and sponsorships   (15,652,575)  (15,326,417)
GST paid    (1,550,606)  (1,455,429)
       
Receipts        
Interest received   673,977   612,570 
GST receipts on income   78,406   54,972 
GST receipts from taxation authority   1,397,925   1,480,276 
Other receipts   584,464   615,283 
Net cash used by Operating Activities  18b) (16,166,468)  (15,521,274)
        
Cashflows from Investing Activities      
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets    -  540
Purchase of non-current physical assets  (81,893)  (102,476)
Net cash used in Investing Activities   (81,893)  (101,936)
       
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash held   268,639   490,790 
Cash assets at the beginning of the financial year   6,815,913   6,325,123 
Cash Assets At The End Of The Financial Year  18a) 7,084,552   6,815,913 

 
This Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes To and Forming Part of the Accounts 
for the year ended 30 June 2003 
    
  
1 Significant Accounting Policies 
  

 
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements.  
Unless otherwise stated these policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous year. 

  
(a) General 

  
(i) The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other 
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,  and Urgent Issues 
Group UIG Consensus Views as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions.  Several of these are 
modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary the application, disclosure, format and wording.  The 
Financial Administration and Audit Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions 
governing the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting 
Standards, Statement of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board, and UIG Consensus Views.  The modifications are intended 
to fulfil the requirements of general application to the public sector, together with the need for greater 
disclosure and also to satisfy accountability requirements. 

  

 

If any such modification has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details 
of that modification and where practicable, the resulting financial effect is disclosed in individual notes 
to these financial statements. 

  
(ii) Basis of Accounting 

  

 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical 
cost convention, except for certain assets and liabilities which, as noted, are measured at fair value. 

  
(b) Revenue Recognition 
  

 

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets and the rendering of services, is 
recognised when the Authority has passed control of the goods or other assets or delivery of the 
service to the customer. 

  
(c) Acquisitions of assets 
  

 

The cost method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets. Cost is measured as the fair 
value of the assets given up or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus incidental costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition. 

  

 
Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised at their fair value at 
the date of acquisition. 
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Notes To and Forming Part of the Accounts 
for the year ended 30 June 2003 
 

 

  
1 Significant Accounting Policies   (Continued) 
 

(d) Depreciation of non-current assets 
  

 
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated 
useful lives in a manner which reflects the consumption of their future economic benefit. 

  

 
Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed annually. 
Expected useful lives for each class of depreciable assets are: 

  
 Motor Vehicles                             10 years 
 Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings     5 to 20 years 
 Office Equipment                          5 to 20 years 
 Computing Equipment                  3 years 
  
(e) Employee Entitlements 
  
(i) Annual Leave 
  

 
This benefit is recognised at the reporting date in respect to employees’ services up to date and is 
measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.   

  
(ii) Long Service Leave 
  

 

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is 
recognised in the provisions fro employee benefits, and is measured at the nominal amounts 
expected to be paid when the liability is settled.  The liability for long service leave expected to be 
settled more than 12 months from the reporting date is recognised in the provisions for employee 
benefits and is measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.  Consideration is given, when assessing 
expected future payments, to expected future wages and salary levels including relevant on costs, 
experience of employee departures and periods of service.  Expected future payments are 
discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms on 
maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

  
(iii) Superannuation 
  

 

Staff may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefits pension scheme now closed to new 
members, or to the Gold State Superannuation scheme, a defined benefits lump sum scheme now 
also closed to new members. All staff who do not contribute to either of these schemes become non-
contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme, an accumulation fund complying 
with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  All of 
these schemes are administered by the Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB). 
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Notes To and Forming Part of the Accounts 
for the year ended 30 June 2003 
  

  
1. Significant Accounting Policies-continued 
(iii) Superannuation-continued 

  

 

The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme are unfunded and the liability for future payments is provided for at reporting 
date.  
 
The liabilities for superannuation charges under the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and West 
State Superannuation Scheme are extinguished by payment of employer contributions to the GESB. 

  
  
(iv) Employee Benefit On-costs 

  

 

Employee benefit on-costs, including payroll tax, are recognised and included in employee benefit 
liabilities and costs when the employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities and 
expenses. 
 

(f) Leases 
  

 

The Authority has entered into operating lease arrangements for the rent of the office building and 
photocopiers where the lessor effectively retains all of the risks and benefits incident to ownership of 
the items held under the operating leases.  Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to 
the Statement of Financial Performance over the lease term as this is representative of the pattern of 
benefits to be derived from the leased property. 

  
(g) Formation of the Foundation  
  

 

The Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation is a statutory authority established under 
Section 15 of the Tobacco Control Act, 1990. The Act was proclaimed on 8 February 1991.Until the 
end of July 1997, funding was received from the Consolidated Fund via a levy on the receipts of the 
Commissioner of State Revenue from the Business Franchise (Tobacco) Act 1975. In August 1997, 
the High Court of Australia determined that the States of Australia did not have the constitutional 
power to impose business franchise fees on the sale of fuel, tobacco and alcohol. This extinguished 
Healthway's principal sources of revenue. The Western Australian State Government amended the 
Tobacco Control Act to provide funding to Healthway directly from the Consolidated Fund thus 
ensuring Healthway's continued operations. 

  

 

For the purposes of AAS16 Accounting Standard “Segment Reporting”, Healthway operates 
predominantly in one industry being the provision of grants and sponsorships to the Western 
Australian community for activities related to the promotion of good health in general, with particular 
emphasis on youth. The revenue that Healthway receives in relation to this comes predominantly 
from the Consolidated Fund. 

  
(h) Funding Arrangements 

  
 The funding arrangements are in accordance with Section 26 of the Tobacco Control Act 1990. 
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 Notes To and Forming Part of the Accounts 

 
for the year ended 30 June 2003 
 

  
1. Significant Accounting Policies-continued 

  
(i)  Accrued Salaries 
  

 

Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the 
end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year.  
The Authority considers the carrying amount approximates net fair value. 
 

(ii) Payable 

 

Payables, including accruals not yet billed, are recognised when the Authority becomes obliged to 
make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services.  Payables are generally settled 
within 30 days. 

  
(iii) Receivables 

  

 

Receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 
30 days from the date of recognition. 
 
Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Debts which are known to be 
uncollectible are written off.  A provision for doubtful debts is raised where some doubts as to 
collection exists and in any event where the debt is more than 60 days overdue. 
 

(j) Output Appropriations 
  

 

Output Appropriations are recognised as revenues in the period in which the Authority gains control 
of the appropriated funds.  The Authority gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds 
are deposited into the Authority’s bank account or credited to the holding account held at the 
Department of Treasury and Finance. 

  
(k) Net Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities 

  
 Net fair values of financial instruments are determined on the following bases: 
  

 

Monetary financial assets and liabilities not traded in an organised financial market - cost basis 
carrying amounts of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accruals (which approximates net 
market value); 

  
 Leave liabilities - current risk adjusted market rates. 
  

 

Healthway has no financial assets where the carrying amount exceeds net fair value at balance date. 

The aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are 

disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position and the notes to and forming part of these financial 

statements. 
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 Notes To and Forming Part of the Accounts 

 
for the year ended 30 June 2003 
 

  
1. Significant Accounting Policies-continued 

  
(l) Cash  
  

 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash assets and restricted cash 
assets net of outstanding bank overdrafts.  These include short-term deposits that are readily 
convertible to cash on hand and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

  
(m) Comparative Figures 

  

 
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified so as to be comparable with the figures 
presented in the current financial year. 

  
(n) Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value 

  

 
Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be reliably measured are 
recognised as revenues and as assets or expenses as appropriate at fair value. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2003 

          
     
  2003    2002 
                  $               $ 
     
2 Employee Expenses     
     
 Wages and salaries 927,533   871,310 
 Annual leave 21,457   (14,090)
 Long service leave 50,786   12,534 
 Superannuation 91,837   89,129 
 Other related expenses (i) 11,253  11,002
     
  1,102,866  969,885

  

(i) These employee expenses include superannuation, payroll tax, 
workers compensation premiums and other employment on-costs 
associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave 
liability.  The related on-costs liability is included in employee benefit 
liabilities at note 15.     

     
     
3 Depreciation    
     
 Motor vehicles 14,696   16,796 
 Fixtures and fittings 11,956   11,956 
 Equipment and apparatus 7,117   6,821 
 Computing equipment and software 55,218   49,062 
 Furniture 687   539 
     
  89,674   85,174 
     
     
4 Grants and sponsorships    
     
 Health promotion project grants 2,974,484   2,926,736 
 Health promotion research grants 2,564,715   2,401,350 
 Arts sponsorships 2,549,087   2,588,698 
 Sports sponsorship 5,105,615   4,945,297 
 Racing sponsorship 870,000   858,635 
 Support sponsorship 1,608,865   1,486,370 
 Evaluation 270,162   259,591 
     
  15,942,928   15,466,677 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2003 

    
  2003    2002 
                  $               $ 
5 Administrative expenditure    
     
 Communication 61,560   57,440 
 Consultants and contractors 220,522   215,111 
 Other 116,845   149,360 
 Maintenance 24,445   39,306 
 Inventories    -   80,515 
 Other staff costs 60,245   46,395 
     
  483,617   588,127 

 6 Accommodation expenses     
      
 Lease rentals  124,504   106,303 
 Cleaning  2,126   5,442 
 Rates  12,018   7,795 
      
   138,648   119,540 
      
7 Other expenses from ordinary activities     
      
 Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed of :     
      
 Motor Vehicles  3,295   623 
      
   3,295   623 
      
8 Other revenue from ordinary activities     
      
 Return of unexpended grants and sponsorships  570,464   600,769 
 Other  14,000   540 
      
   584,464   601,309 
9 Revenues from State Government     
      
 Appropriation revenue received during the year:     
      
 Output Appropriations (i)   16,517,000   16,114,000 
   16,517,000   16,114,000 
      

 

(i) Output appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the full cost 
of outputs delivered.  The appropriation revenue comprises a cash 
component and a receivable (asset).  The receivable (holding 
account) comprises the depreciation expense for the year and any 
agreed increase in leave liability during the year. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2003 

    
          
  2003    2002 
                  $               $ 
      
 Resources received free of charge (ii)      

 
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by 
agencies:     

      
 Office of the Auditor General  20,000   20,000 
      
   20,000   20,000 
      
   16,537,000   16,134,000 
      

 

(ii) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or 
for nominal consideration, the Authority recognises revenues 
(except  where the contribution of assets or services is in the nature 
of contributions by owners, in which case the Authority shall make a 
direct adjustment to equity) equivalent to the fair value of the assets 
and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably 
determined and which would have been purchased if not donated, 
and those fair values shall be recognised as assets or expenses, as 
applicable. 
     

      
10 Cash assets     
      
 Held at Treasury - WA Health Promotion Fund  7,084,252   6,815,913 
 Cash on Hand  300      -  
      
   7,084,552   6,815,913 

11 Receivables    
     
 GST receivable 210,880   113,672 
 Interest receivable 28,494   30,668 
     
  239,374   144,340 

12 Other assets    
     
 Prepayments 1,365   4,808 
     
  1,365   4,808 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2003 

    
  2003    2002 
                  $               $ 

13 Plant, Equipment and Vehicles    
     
 Motor Vehicles - at Cost 154,188   160,201 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation 12,887   13,472 
     
 Written Down Value 141,301   146,729 
     
 Fixtures and Fittings - at Cost 239,113   239,113 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation 40,358   28,402 
     
 Written Down Value 198,755   210,711 
     
 Equipment and Apparatus - at Cost 46,018   46,018 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation 27,240   20,124 
     
 Written Down Value 18,778   25,894 
     
 Computing Equipment and software - at Cost 260,756   191,427 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation 175,726   120,509 
     
 Written Down Value 85,030   70,918 
     
 Furniture - at Cost 15,506   15,506 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation 9,454   8,766 
     
 Written Down Value 6,052   6,740 
       
 Total written down value all Non-Current Assets 449,916   460,992 
      

 

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of plant, 
equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of 
the current and previous financial year are set out 
below:    

 

2003 
Motor 

Vehicles

Fixtures 
and 

Fittings 

Equipment 
and 

Apparatus 
Computing 
Equipment Furniture Total

Carrying amount at the start of the 
year 146,729 210,711 25,894 70,918  6,740 460,992 
Additions 82,448    -     -  69,329     -  151,777 
Disposals (88,460)    -     -     -     -  (88,460)
Other movements 15,281    -     -     -     -  15,281 
Depreciation (14,697) (11,956) (7,116) (55,217) (688) (89,674)
Carrying amount at the end of the 
year 
 
 141,301 198,755 18,778 85,030  6,052 449,916 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2003 

    
  2003    2002 
  $  $ 
    

14 Payable   
    
 Accounts Payable 54,997  122,123
 Grants and sponsorships 6,521,906  6,202,518
    
  6,576,903  6,324,641
    

15 Provisions   
    
 Current   
 Annual leave 38,868  19,575
 Long Service leave 65,947  57,168
 Other (i) 1,166  835
 Superannuation (ii)  10,598  7,758
    
  116,579  85,336
    
 Non-current   
 Liability for long service leave 55,278  18,416
 Other (i)  614  204
 Superannuation (ii)  5,590  1,862
    
  61,482  20,482
    
    

 

(i) The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities give 
rise to the payment of employment on-costs including superannuation, 
payroll tax and workers compensation premiums.  The liability for such 
on-costs is included here.  The associated expense is included under 
Other related expenses (under Employee Expenses) at note 2. 
 
(ii) The superannuation liability has been established from an actuarial 
assessment of the present value of the employer’s unfunded liability for 
superannuation associated with the Authority.  The assessment is dated 
30 June 2003 and is based on salary, wage and pension inflation of 5% 
and a discount rate of 10%.   

    
16 Other Liabilities   
    
 Accrued expenses 12,741  12,834
 Accrued salaries (i) 24,031  31,528
    
  36,772  44,362
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2003 

    
  2003    2002 
  $  $ 

17 Equity   
    
 Accumulated surplus   
 Opening balance 951,232  834,517
 Change in net assets 32,239  116,715
    
 Closing balance 983,471  951,232
    

18 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows   
    
 (a) Reconciliation of cash   
    

 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of 
Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of 
Financial Position as follows:   

    
 Cash assets  7,084,252   6,815,913 
 Cash on Hand 300      -  
    
  7,084,552   6,815,913 
    

 
(b) Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided 

by/(used in) operating activities   
    
 Net cost of services (16,504,761)  (16,017,285)
    
 Non-cash items   
 Depreciation 89,674   85,174 
 Resources Received Free of Charge 20,000   20,000 
 Loss on Disposal of Assets 3,295   623 
    
 (Increase)/decrease in assets:   
 Current receivables 2,174  55,021 
 Current inventories    -   79,491 
 Other current assets 3,443   (265)
    
 Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:   
 Current accounts payable 252,262   238,877 
 Current provisions 31,243   4,095 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2003 

         
     
  2003   2002 
  $  $ 
 Other current liabilities (7,590) (21,264)
 Non-current provisions 41,000  (5,651)
 GST Receivable (74,275) 39,910 
 Change in GST in receivables/payables (22,933) -
 Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (16,166,468)  (15,521,274)  
      
 

19 
Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority and 
Senior Officers    

 

      

 
Remuneration of Members of the Accountable 
Authority     

 

 

The number  of members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of 
fees, salaries, superannuation and other benefits for the financial year, 
fall within the following bands:   

 

  $0 - $10,000 2   6   
  $10,001 - $20,000 4   1   
  $20,001 - $30,000 1      -    
      
 The total remuneration of the members of the Accountable Authority is: 75,086   55,471  
      

 

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation 
expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the 
Accountable Authority.  No members of the Accountable Authority are 
members of the Pension Scheme.    

 

      

 Remuneration of Senior Officers     

 

The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as 
members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of fees, salaries, 
superannuation and other benefits for the financial year, fall within 
bands are:    

 

  $10,001 - $20,000 1      -    
  $50,001 - $60,000 1      -    
  $70,001 - $80,000 1   1   
  $80,001 - $90,000 3   2   
  $90,001 - $100,000    -    1   
  $100,001 - $110,000 1      -    
  $120,001 - $130,000 1   1   
  $140,001 - $150,000    -    1   
     
 The total remuneration of senior officers is: 636,858   609,496  

 

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation 
expense incurred by the Authority in respect of senior officers other than 
senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority.  No 
senior members are members of the pension scheme.     
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 30 June 2003 
          

     
  2003   2002 
                $                 $ 
     

20 Commitments for expenditure    
     
 (a) Grants expenditure commitments    
     

 

Grant expenditure commitments relate to the Board's approval to fund 
applications which were received prior to 1 July 2002 and are contingent 
on Healthway's continued existence and future revenue being received. 
The balance is not recognised as a liability until the year payment is to 
be made. The amounts payable are as follow:    

     
 Within 1 year 5,661,272  5,363,643 
 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,775,843  948,090 
     
  7,437,115  6,311,733 
     
 (b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments    
     
 Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:    
     
 Within 1 year 114,702  101,494 
 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 221,500  311,287 
   
  336,202  412,781 
     

 

The property lease is a non-cancellable lease with a with a five year 
term, with rent payable monthly in advance.  Contingent rental provisions 
within the lease agreement require that the minimum lease payments 
shall be increased by the lower of CPI or 4% per anum.  An option exists 
to renew the lease at the end of the five year term for an additional term 
of two years.    
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 30 June 2003 
          

 
21 Financial Instruments      
       

(a) Interest rate risk exposure      
       

 

The following table details the Authority’s 
exposure to interest rate risk as at the reporting 
date: 

     

    

Weighted 
Average 
effective 
interest 

rate 

Floating 
interest 

rate 

Non 
Interest 
Bearing 

 Total 

 2003      
         
 Financial Assets      
 Cash assets 4.895% 7,084,552    7,084,552 
 Receivables   239,374  239,374 
       
 Total financial assets  7,084,552  239,374  7,323,926 
         
  Financial Liabilities       
 Payables   6,576,903  6,576,903 
 Provisions   178,061  178,061 
 Other liabilities   36,772  36,772 
       
 Total financial liabilities     -  6,791,736  6,791,736
       
     
 2002      
       
 Financial assets 4.793% 6,815,913 144,340  6,960,253 
 Financial liabilities   6,474,821  6,474,821 
       
       

(b) Net Fair Values      
       

 

The carrying amount of financial assets and 
financial liabilities recorded in the financial 
statements are not materially different from their 
net fair values, determined in accordance with 
the accounting policies disclosed in note 1 to the 
financial statements.      
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 30 June 2003 
          

 
22 

 
Significant variations between estimates and 
actual results for the financial year      

 
Significant variations are considered to be those 
greater than 10% and $25,000.      

  Budget Actual Variance 
       
 (i) Employee expenses 960,000 1,102,866  (142,866)  (12.95%)
       

 
Additional employee entitlements accrued during the 
year largely attributed to the variance.      

 (ii) Interest 
 

600,000 671,803  (71,803)  (10.69%)

 

The amount of interest earnings is reflective of the 
balance held in the WA Health Promotion Fund and 
the interest determined by WA Treasury 
Corporation.  Slightly higher interest rates than those 
projected for the year resulted in higher interest 
earnings.      

       
23 Significant variations between actual revenues 

and expenditures for the financial year and 
revenues and expenditures for the immediately 
preceding financial year      

 
Significant variations are considered to be those 
greater than 10% and $25,000.      

       
 Expenditure 2003 2002    

 (i) Employee expenses 
 
1,102,866 969,885  132,981  13.71% 

 
Additional employee entitlements accrued during the 
year largely attributed to the variance.      

 (ii) Administrative expenditure 
 

483,617 588,127  (104,510)  (17.77%)

 

In prior years part of support sponsorships costs 
were reflected against administrative expenses.  In 
2002-2003 these costs are now shown against 
grants and sponsorships expenditure.  This 
movement of expenditure mainly attributed to the 
variance.      

       
24 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets      
       

 
There were no known contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets at balance date.      

       
25 Events Occurring After Reporting Date      

 
No events have occurred after balance date that 
require disclosure in the financial report.      



 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

 

4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005  Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664 

   
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
WESTERN AUSTRALIAN HEALTH PROMOTION FOUNDATION 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 
 
 
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the Western 
Australian Health Promotion Foundation are relevant and appropriate to help users assess 
the Foundation’s performance and fairly represent the indicated performance for the year 
ended June 30, 2003. 
 
Scope 
The Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation’s Role 
The Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation is responsible for developing and 
maintaining proper records and systems for preparing performance indicators.  
 
The performance indicators consist of key indicators of efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
Summary of my Role 
As required by the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, I have independently 
audited the performance indicators to express an opinion on them.  This was done by 
looking at a sample of the evidence. 
 
An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the performance indicators 
is error free, nor does it examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit 
procedures should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the 
decisions of users of the performance indicators. 
 

 
D D R  PEARSON 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
October 22, 2003 
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CERTIFICATION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
 
We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant 
and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Western Australian Health Promotion 
Foundation’s performance, and fairly represent the performance of the performance of the 
Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation for the financial year ended 30 June 2003. 
 

 
 
Ray Della-Polina 
Chairman 
 
 

 
Leith Taylor 
Deputy Chairperson 
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2002-2003 
 
 
The following performance indicators are included to provide information on the 
performance of Healthway with respect to its outcomes. 
 
Outcome 
 
Healthway’s outcome is to increase individual knowledge and skills, and change 
behaviour and community and organisational policies and environments to improve 
health. This is achieved through health promotion projects, research, sponsorship and 
support sponsorship. 
 
Effectiveness 
 
Since 1992-1993 quantitative evaluative data on the outcomes of Healthway funded 
projects have been available from the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit (HPEU) which 
was established to evaluate Healthway’s programs. 
 
Contractual Evaluation Measure 
 
Healthway has adopted a six point scale under its Graduated Project Evaluation which 
has been developed through the HPEU.  Each completed project receives a score. 
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2002-2003   (Continued) 
 
 
 
Key to Scores 
 

 
Score 

 
Descriptive Interpretation 

Notional 
number 

interpretation 
6 The outputs1 of the project exceeded those 

required by the contract to a very substantial 
degree.  The project delivered outstanding value 
for money. 

150%+ 

5 The outputs1 of the project exceeded those 
required by the contract to a large degree.  The 
project delivered excellent value for money. 

120-149% 

4 The outputs1 of the project were consistent with, 
or in the vicinity of, those required by the 
contract.  The project delivered good value for 
money. 

95-119% 

3 The outputs1 of the project fell short of those 
required by the contract, but were still within the 
bounds of acceptability.  The project delivered 
marginally adequate value for money. 

75-94% 

2 The outputs1 of the project fell well short of those 
required by the contract.  The project delivered 
poor value for money. 

50-74% 

1 The outputs1 of the project fell short of those 
required by the contract to a very substantial 
degree.  The project delivered completely 
unacceptable value for money. 

<50% 

                                                
1 Reference to outputs takes into account measures relating to educational strategies, population reach, 
contributions to increases in individual knowledge and skills and the extent to which organisations have 
implemented health policies and maintain a healthy environment.  These contractual evaluation 
measures relate directly to Healthway’s overall outcome. 
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2002-2003   (Continued) 
 
 
EFFECTIVENESS INDICATOR 
 
Contractual Evaluation Measures Of All Projects And Sponsorships 

 
 
Contractual evaluation measure: 

Average contractual evaluation score 
(cf. Norm of 4.0) 

2002-2003 
 

2001-2002 2000-2001 

 

Health Promotion Projects 4.1 4.0 4.0 
 
Arts projects 
Sport projects 
Racing projects 

 

 
3.9 
3.8 
3.9 

 
3.9 
4.0 
4.0 

 
3.9 
3.8 
3.9 

Support Sponsorship 4.1 4.2 4.0 

Sponsorship recipients are required to complete statistical forms at the conclusion of the 
sponsorship.  These are used as part of the contractual evaluation measure.  Other 
factors include assessment by Healthway staff monitoring the respective sponsorships. 

Overall, the results show that sponsorship recipients have consistently met requirements 
of sponsorship agreements.   

Sponsorship Monitor Survey 
 2002-2003 2001-2002 1999-2000 

% People attending Healthway sponsored 
events who were aware of the health message. 
 

 
 

71% 

 
 

70% 

 
 

77% 
% People attending a Healthway event who 
correctly understood the health message 
 

 
68% 

 
66% 

 
72% 

% People who showed intention to act on 
health message 

 
16% 

 
14% 

 
18% 

 

The Sponsorship Monitor is a component of the overall evaluation of Healthway conducted by 
the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit, an independent academic group based at The 
University of Western Australia. The Sponsorship Monitor is conducted biannually and 
involves all Healthway sponsorship projects valued at more than $25,000 in which the health 
agency support sponsor receives more than $7,000 for arts projects and more than $12,000 
for sport and racing projects.   
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2002-2003   (Continued) 
 
 
For the 2002-2003 Sponsorship Monitor, one event was randomly selected from each eligible 
sponsored project. Surveys were conducted at each event of between 50 and 150 audience 
members depending on the size of the event, using either interviewer-administered or self-
completion questionnaires. Data was collected on the cognitive impact of the health message, 
specifically audience awareness, understanding of and attitudes to the message, intentions 
and behaviour in relation to the message. Audience members were randomly selected for 
interview and surveyed in line with IQCA standards and the ICC/ESOMAR International Code 
of Conduct. Standard procedures were also used to monitor interviewer response rates, and 
these were found to be at least 80%. The methods for conducting the Sponsorship Monitor 
have been published by Donovan and co-workers.1 

 
Data collection for the 2002/03 sponsorship monitor took place from July 2002 to June 2003 
and involved audience surveys from randomly selected events representing 37 major 
Healthway-sponsored sport, arts and racing projects. In total, 2,690 people were sampled for 
the 2002-2003 Sponsorship Monitor. The total population size is the sum of audience 
attendances at all events included in the sponsorship projects surveyed. This figure is not 
known and cannot be reliably estimated because of difficulties in accurately recording 
attendances at sponsored events.   
 
These studies confirm the effectiveness of sponsorship as a strategy to achieve high levels of 
awareness and comprehension of a health message at a sport, arts or racing event.   They 
also provide evidence that health sponsorship can lead to behaviour change. 
 
As these extensive surveys are not currently undertaken every year and therefore no results 
are available for 2000-2001 due to the complexity of the survey and the analysis required.   

However, on comparison with the two previous Sponsorship Monitor surveys it is evident 
that a consistently high percentage of people attending events are aware of and 
understand the health promotion messages.  Healthway continues to examine 
opportunities to encourage people to act on these health messages. 
 
 
Reference 
 
1. Donovan RJ, Jalleh G, Clarkson J and Giles-Corti B 1999. Evidence for the effectiveness of 
sponsorship as a health promotion tool. Australian Journal of Primary Health Interchange 5 (4) 
81-91. 
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2002-2003   (Continued) 
 
 
EFFICIENCY INDICATOR 

 
Costing Model 
 
It has been recognised that the size, complexity and duration of a project is directly related to 
the administrative costs associated with a project.  In order to more precisely determine 
project administrative costs and to monitor trends, the Board approved a costing model which 
examined associated administrative costs relative to the complexity and dollar value of 
processing grants and sponsorships. 
 
The costing model reflects the projects that were approved for funding in 2002-2003 including 
multi-year funded projects in previous years and includes the actual application numbers that 
were rejected for funding.  In total the number of applications applied to the costing model are 
65 less than the previous year.  In comparison, the 2002-2003 Corporate Services cost rose 
by some $100,000 on the previous year reflecting an increase in Board fees and once-off 
recruitment associated with senior officer positions. 
 
As part of ongoing operations a review of the costing model is progressing to ensure that it 
reflects current and future directions and work practices.  
 
 2002-2003 2001-2002 
 Number Average Cost Number Average Cost
Admin Reject 40 $72 59 $84 

Reject 196 $427 245 $487 

<= $5,000 848 $1,030 811 $1,078 

$5,001 – $10,000 72 $1,986 97 $1,572 

$10,001 – $20,000 64 $2,598 79 $2,103 

$20,001 – $50,000 84 $2,849 80 $2,514 

$50,001 – $100,000 47 $4,443 47 $3,107 

>$100,000 26 $4,685 24 $4,119 
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Health Projects (approved for funding in 2002-2003) 

   
Organisation Project Title Amount 

   
Alcohol and other drug misuse   
Australian Health Promotion Association (WA) Health Promotion Graduate Scholarship Program $90,553 
Gascoyne Public Health Unit Carnarvon Health and Men Project (CHAMP) - Stage II $161,079 
Ms Noni Walker Leadership in Health Promotion $45,000 
South Metropolitan Public Health Unit Work for the Dole Health Promotion Pilot Project $43,758 

   
Cancer Prevention   
Cancer Foundation of WA 'Me No Fry' - Adolescent Skin Cancer Prevention Campaign $83,000 
Cancer Foundation of WA Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $490 
Cancer Foundation of WA Capacity Building - LEAP'03 $629 

   
Determinants of Healthy Behaviour   
Royal Life Saving Society Australia WA Branch Inc Drowning Prevention Program $150,100 

   
Diabetes prevention   
Diabetes Association of WA Inc Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $520 
Kimberley Public Health Unit Let's Get Physical – “Broome Style” $9,705 
Kulkarriya Community School Kulkarriya Cafe $10,000 
Paupiyala Tjarutja Aboriginal Corporation Diabetes - Let's All Find Out $1,050 

   
Good Nutrition Promotion   
East Metropolitan Population Health Unit Aboriginal & Islander Health Worker Conference $1,000 
Mullewa District High School Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $498 
Newman Neighbourhood Centre Inc Foodcent$ in Newman $2,260 
Population Health Directorate ‘Go for 2 & 5’ : Tasting Events & Social Marketing Campaign $14,957 
South West Area Health Service 'Go for 2 & 5' : Advertising Campaign $4,886 
Yalgoo Primary School Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $1,164 

   
Health Promotion   
Australian Health Promotion Association (WA) LEAP '03 Scholarships $200 
Cancer Foundation of WA The Healthy Business Project $87,250 
Friends of Community Health Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $200 
Health Promotion Evaluation Unit Aboriginal Evaluator Health Promotion Project $77,087 
National Heart Foundation 'Health + Medicine' (IV) $68,200 
Nintirri Centre Inc Healthy Mind, Healthy Body - Strong Women $3,000 
Northam Regional Hospital - Avon Health Service Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $444 
Population Health Directorate Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $500 
Scitech Discovery Centre Body Odyssey - Journey through the human body $3,000 

   
Health Promotion   
Vasse Leeuwin Community Health Service Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $260 

   
Healthy environments   
Leschanault Mosquito Control CLAG Ross River Virus Community Awareness Project $3,750 
Margaret River District Hospital Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $520 

   
Injury Prevention   
Kidsafe WA Hot Water Burns Like Fire - Scalds Prevention Campaign 2002 $40,000 
Kimberley Population Health Unit Child Injury Prevention Program $4,850 
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Mental Health Promotion   
Consumer Ref Group - Perth & Hills Division of GP  Kit "Keeping it Together" Project $3,200 
Lower Great Southern Primary Health Service Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $320 
Madjulla Aboriginal Corporation Engaging Derby Young People $6,000 
North Metropolitan Health Service Population Healt Family Mental Health and Well-Being for Multicultural Families $4,956 
Peel Youth Program Active Women $3,240 

   
Physical Activity Promotion   
Pilbara Public Health Unit Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $1,370 
Population Health Directorate 'Pledge to find 30' Pedometer Program $11,262 
Upper Great Southern Primary Health Service Bibbulmun Track School Challenge $2,700 

   
Sexual Health   
City of Gosnells Promoting Adolescent Sexual Health $2,369 
Family Planning Association of WA Inc Peer Education Program for Indigenous Young People $186,620 

   
Tobacco Smoking Control   
Asthma Foundation of WA Newborns Asthma and Parental Smoking Project - Phase III $301,450 
Australian Council on Smoking and Health Tobacco Control Project 2002-2005 $165,000 
Ballajura Community College SMART School $2,350 
Beachlands Primary School SMART School $1,724 
Boyanup Primary School SMART School $2,010 
Bridgetown High School SMART School $2,850 
Cancer Foundation of WA Capacity Building - Target 15 Campaign $1,000 
Cancer Foundation of WA Smoking Cessation Centre of Excellence $96,000 
Cancer Foundation of WA Target 15 Campaign $400,000 
East Metropolitan Population Health Unit Say No To Smokes Project (Final Year) $150,000 
Glencoe Primary School SMART School $1,300 
Halls Creek District High School SMART School $700 
Hannans Primary School SMART School $1,365 
Karratha Senior High School SMART School $2,500 
Kearnan College SMART School $1,200 
Kensington Primary School SMART School $1,900 
Kimberley Health Service Capacity Building - LEAP '03 $1,500 
Manjimup Senior High School SMART School $1,591 
Merriwa Primary School SMART School $2,395 
Mindarie Senior College SMART School $3,000 
Mullaloo Heights Primary School SMART School $2,010 
National Heart Foundation SMART School $441,642 
North Albany Senior High School SMART School $3,000 
North Fremantle Primary School SMART School $1,575 
Picton Primary School SMART School $1,380 
St Joseph's Catholic Primary School SMART School $2,360 
Thornlie Primary School SMART School $2,000 
Waggrakine Primary School SMART School $1,400 
Wongutha CAPS SMART School $1,350 
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Research Projects (approved for funding in 2002-2003)  

    
Chief Investigator Organisation  Project Title  Amount 

    
Scholarship/Fellowship    
Ms Natasha Pearce  Curtin University of Technology  Critical success factors for building school capacity to engage parents in effective school-based health promotion $27,200 
Mrs Miriam Melis  Edith Cowan University Joondalup Adolescent grief research to create a prevention strategy to address the needs of youth experiencing grief or who may experience 

grief as an adolescent 
$31,000 

Mr Gavin McCormack  University of WA  Modelling of Environmental and Psychosocial Determinants of Physical Activity Behaviour $25,600 
Ms Lynette Rodriguez  University of WA  Role Models, Mentors & Heroes: an exploration of the journeys of Aboriginal youth through post-compulsory education and 

training 
$30,500 

    
Starter Grants     
Ms Sharyn Burns  Curtin University of Technology  Analysing the factors that influence primary school children to bully others $20,000 
Ass Prof Donna Cross  Curtin University of Technology  Formative Study of Aggression Prevention and Reduction in Junior Primary School Children $19,992 
Dr Sebely Pal  Curtin University of Technology  Using Pedometers to step towards better health: A pilot study $19,105 
Dr P Chang  Edith Cowan University Joondalup Using Auditory Simulations to Change Attitudes Towards Noise Exposure $20,000 
Ass Prof AC Page  University of WA  Increasing healthy lifestyles among people with intellectual disability $19,620 
Dr Marisa Gilles  University of WA  Measuring the relationship between population health and the social environment in Carnarvon $19,371 
Prof Peter Le Souef  University of WA  Pilot study to assess tobacco smoke emissions from smokers $19,995 

    
Research Grants     
Ms TG Westerman  Curtin University of Technology  An intervention program for Aboriginal youth identified at risk of depression and suicide $97,950 
Dr C Roberts  Curtin University of Technology  Culturally appropriate prevention of Aboriginal childhood depression and anxiety $93,801 
Assoc Prof D Cross  Curtin University of Technology  Friendly schools - friendly families project $99,169 
Dr G Hamilton  Curtin University of Technology  Impact of extra-curricular activities on adolescents' connectedness and cigarette smoking $97,523 
Dr D Cross  Curtin University of Technology  Maximising Parent Involvement in the Pedestrian Safety of 4 to 6 year old Children $99,725 
Dr P Howat  Curtin University of Technology  Physical activity for sedentary seniors $98,253 
Prof SR Zubrick  Curtin University of Technology  Physical activity levels in early adolescence: antecedents and consequences $78,046 
Prof S Silburn  Curtin University of Technology  The Preconception Intervention Program: A randomised controlled trial $94,840 
Dr RM Rooney  Curtin University of Technology  The effectiveness of the Positive Thinking Program in Preventing Internalising disorders in 8-9 year old children $97,301 
Mr GJ Hamilton  Curtin University of Technology  Trans-adaption of successful cigarette smoking intervention to randomised school-based cannabis intervention trial $91,352 
Dr NT Lautenschlager  University of WA  A trial of physical activity for vulnerable older adults with mild cognitive impairment $99,614 
Dr KL Cox  University of WA  Adoption of regular physical activity in older adults: mentoring a strategy $92,717 
A/Prof A Janca  University of WA  Development of a culturally applicable approach to Aboriginal mental health problems: from assessment to promotion of mental 

health 
$99,919 

Dr Susan Byrne  University of WA  Factors influencing the persistence of childhood obesity $50,000 
Clin Assoc Prof C Bower  University of WA  Fetal Alcohol Syndrome in Australia $46,054 
Dr Valerie Burke  University of WA  Health promotion in individuals at rick of heart disease: long-term effects $58,620 
Prof Kevin Durkin  University of WA  Media use, physical activity and diet in early adolescence $100,000 
Prof OP Almeida  University of WA  Promoting physical activity in later life: impact on memory and mood $98,989 
Dr D Lehmann  University of WA  Qualitative and quantitative studies of otitis media to improve ear health $96,024 
Dr MR Rosenberg  University of WA  The long-term physical activity patterns of rural school leavers $62,187 
Assoc Prof Billie Giles-Corti  University of WA  What factors influence active-commuting in University staff and students $8,106 
Assoc Prof Billie Giles-Corti  University of WA  'Liveable Neighbourhoods': Do they increase physical activity? $351,692 

    
Special Initiatives     
Healthway  NFO Donovan Research  Topical Tobacco Research $70,500 
Healthway Healthway  Tobacco Control $129,500 
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Sport Projects (approved for funding in 2002-2003)  

        
Organisation Project Title Project 

Amount 
 Health Agency Health Message  Support 

Amount 
 

        
Alcohol and other drug misuse        
Baseball WA Development Programs $75,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $8,000  
Derby Rodeo and Horseriders Association Derby Campdraft, Rodeo & Gymkhana $2,500  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself $400  
Gosnells Hawks Baseball Club Junior Development Officers Program $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free Kit $400  
Great Southern District Rifle Association Inc Prize Meeting 2003 $500  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself $400  
Lakeside Baptist Church Inc Banksia Hills Detention Centre Sports Ministry $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free Kit $400  
Lions Club of Mullewa Mullewa Lions Gift 2003 $2,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free Kit $400  
Perth Wildcats Pty Ltd Sports Partnership $75,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $12,000  
Port Hedland Baseball Association Inc Port Hedland Junior Baseball Association Projects $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free Kit $400  
Skateboarding Association of WA WA State Titles - Skateboarding $19,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $2,600  
South West District Rifle Assoc of WA  South West Championships 2003 $500  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself $400  
WA Athletics Commission Athletics Development 2002 $50,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $8,000  
WA Athletics Commission Annual Program 2003 $45,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $7,000  
WA Basketball Federation (Basketball WA) Drug Free Basketball Network $190,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $20,000  
WA Basketball Federation (Basketball WA) Drug Free Perth Lynx 2002 - 2004 $90,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $10,000  
WA Police Sports Federation Inc 2004 Australia & NZ Police & Emergency Services Games $5,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself $400  
WA Rugby League 2002/03 Program $32,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $6,000  
WA Rugby Union Inc Rugby WA Development Program $55,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $10,000  
WA Sports Centre Trust (Sport International) FINA Women's Waterpolo World Cup 2002 $25,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $5,000  
West Stirling Baseball Club Drug Free Junior Baseball Academy $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free Kit $400  
Western Australian Diving Association Inc) 2003 Program $25,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free $4,000  

        
Cancer Prevention        
Amateur Rowing Association of WA 2003 & 2004 Rowing Premiership & Development $22,500  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $3,000  
Australian Anglers Association WA Div Inc MANDURAH 500 Family Fishing Competition $1,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Baptist Union of WA Inc  Sportsfest $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Broome Amateur Swimming Club Inc Region 6 Kimberley Open Short Course Championships $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $400  
Busselton Allsports Inc Busselton Jetty Swim $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Canning Lawn Tennis Club Inc Canning Lawn Tennis Club Tournaments $500  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Corrigin Bowling Club Ladies Invitation Bowls Classic $500  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Derby Amateur Swimming Club Inc King Sound Shield $1,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Emu Point Sporting Club Inc Ladies Bowl Invitation Triples $500  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Esperance Goldfields Surf Life Saving Club Esperance Windsurfing Classic $3,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Geraldton Amateur Swimming & Life Saving Club Inc Western Australia Country Pennants $8,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $1,000  
Hopman Cup Annual Sponsorship 2001 $125,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $26,000  
Hopman Cup Hyundai Hopman Cup $130,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $26,000  
Javelin Sailing Association  WA Inc 2002 Javelin South Pacific Championship $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Melville Amateur Angling Club Inc SwanFish - Recreational Angling Promotional Activities $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Midland Cycle Club Inc Chittering Challenge $1,500  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Midwest Regional Cricket Board Midwest Juniors $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Mirror Class Association of WA Inc Mirror Training $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Recfishwest Fishsmart Sunsmart Program $40,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $4,000  
Royal Life Saving Society Australia WA Branch Inc Swim & Survive $25,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $2,500  
Royal Life Saving Society Australia WA Branch Inc Swim and Survive 2001-2003 $25,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $3,000  
Shire of Chittering Spring into Sport $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Sorrento Tennis Club Tennis Fun Day $1,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
State Sailing Centre of WA Continuing Programs & Summer Splash $26,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $1,250  
Surf Life Saving WA Inc  School & Community Education Program $65,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $8,000  
Surfing Western Australia Annual Program 2002 - 2003 $92,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $12,000  
Tennis Coaches Australia Western Australia Inc 2003 Little Masters Tennis Championships $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Tennis West Junior Development Program 2001-2003 $120,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $14,000  
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Tennis West Tennis Participation and Development Program 2003-2005 $125,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $14,000  
University of WA Sport and Recreation Association  Festival of Cricket $1,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Veterans Tennis Association of WA Inc Australian Veteran Tennis Championships $6,500  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $1,000  
WA Cricket Association Inc 2002/2003 Sponsorship $220,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $30,000  
WA Ladies Bowling Association Inc Junior Development $30,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $4,000  
WA Swimming Association Annual Program 2002-2005 $100,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $15,000  
WA Triathlon Association  2002 - 2003 Project $33,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $5,000  
WA Women's Cricket Association Annual Sponsorship 2002-2003 $20,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $3,000  
WA Women's Cricket Association Annual Sponsorship 2003-2004 $20,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $3,000  
West Australian Barefoot Water Ski Club 2003 Australasian Barefoot Water Ski Championships $5,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Western Australian J24 Class Association Inc 2003 Intern J24 Class Aust Championship Sailing Regatta $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Women's Triathlon Pty Ltd Women's Triathlon $2,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Wyalkatchem and Districts Club Ladies Classic Triples $350  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Yachting Association of WA Inc Multi Development Projects $25,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart $1,500  

        
Good Nutrition Promotion        
Australian Stock Horse Society Western Australian Championships 2003 $3,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Calisthenics Association of WA Inc 15th National Calisthenics Championships $5,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Central Midlands Agricultural Society CMAS - Horses in Action $1,200  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Dandaragan Gymkhana & Fair Dandaragan Gymkhana & Fair $1,300  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Equestrian Federation of Australia (WA) 2003 Equestrian Activities $65,000  National Heart Foundation Enjoy Healthy Eating $6,000  
Hack Council of Western Australia 2003 Horse of the Year $1,250  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Junction Race Club Junction Bush Gymkhana, Gascoyne Junction $2,500  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Munglinup Bushmans Association Munglinup Bushmans Easter Campdraft $1,500  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Pinjarra Horse Festival Inc 2003 Pinjarra Horse Festival $8,000  Cancer Foundation Enjoy Healthy Eating $1,000  
Pony Club Association of WA 2003 Annual Program $31,500  Cancer Foundation Enjoy Healthy Eating $4,000  
Shire of Dundas Gymnastics Club Coaching Course $1,500  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
WA Gymnastic Association (Gymnastics WA) Gymnastic Development Program 2002/2003 $90,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating $10,000  

        
Health Promotion        
A I M Archery Club Healthy Club $1,400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Albany Aussi Masters Swimming Club (Inc.) Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Albany Cycling Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Albany Surf Life Saving Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Albany Triathlon Club Inc Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
ANA Rowing Club Inc Healthy Club $1,400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Applecross Junior Football Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Armadale Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Armadale Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Ascot Kayak Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Associates Rugby Union Football Club Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Attadale Netball Club Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Atwell Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,300  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Badgingarra Tennis Club Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Balcatta Baseball Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Balcatta Volleyball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Baldivis Archery Club Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Balga Junior Football Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Ballajura Senior Football Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bassendean Amateur Football Club Healthy Club $1,700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Beacon Community Recreation Council Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bedford Bowling Club Healthy Club $1,900  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bedford Districts Youth Club Softball Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Beechboro Lockridge Junior Cricket Club Inc Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Beechboro Senior Football Club Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Belmont Junior Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
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Belmont Park Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Belmont Saints Squash & Sports Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Belmont Villa Soccer Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Blue Gum Squash Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Boddington Football Club Healthy Club $1,530  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Borden Netball Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Borden Pavillion Committee Incorporated Healthy Club $900  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Boulder City Football and Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Boyanup Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Boyanup Memorial Park Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Braves Baseball Club of Melville City (Inc) Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bridgetown Football Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Broome Bowling Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Broome Netball Association Healthy Club $1,800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Broome Touch Association Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bruce Rock Bowling Club Healthy Club $300  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bruce Rock Cricket Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bruce Rock Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bruce Rock Netball Club Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bruce Rock Pony Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bunbury Basketball Association Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bunbury Dynamos Soccer Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Bunbury Triathlon Club Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Busselton Amateur Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Busselton Squash Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Busselton Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $1,100  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Busselton Water Polo Association Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Cambridge Squash Club Inc Healthy Club $660  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Canning Cosmos Soccer Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Canning Cougars Tee-Ball Club (Inc) Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Canningvale Canons Netball Club Healthy Club $1,300  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Carine Cats Ball Club  Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Carlisle Cricket Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Carlisle Football Club Inc Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Carnarvon Amateur Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Carnarvon Netball Association Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Carnarvon Pistol Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Carnarvon Senior Soccer Association Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Carnarvon Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
CBC Football Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Central Cougars Junior Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Chapman Valley Cricket Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Civic Bowling Club Merredin Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Claremont Lawn Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Claremont Recreation and Bowling Club Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Claremont-Nedlands Soccer Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Coastal Gymnastics Club (Inc) Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Cockburn City Soccer Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Cockburn City Teeball and Baseball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Cockburn Hawks Ice Hockey Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Cockburn Junior Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Collegians Amateur Football & Sporting Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Collie Eagles Football Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Condingup Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Coolbinia West Perth Amateur Football Club Healthy Club $1,300  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Coolup Campdraft Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
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Corinthian Park Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Corrigin Football Club Healthy Club $1,400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Cottesloe Rugby Union Football Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Cottesloe Surf Life Saving Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Croatia-North Perth Soccer Sports & Social Club Healthy Club $1,480  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dalkeith Nedlands Bowling Club Inc Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dalkeith Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dalyellup Beach Soccer Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dampier Squash Club  Healthy Club $750  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Denmark Surf Life Saving Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Donnybrook Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $850  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dowerin Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dowerin Lawn Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dumbleyung Gymnastics Club Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dumbleyung Hockey Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Dumbleyung Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Duncraig Junior Cricket Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
East Fremantle Amateur Football Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
East Fremantle Lawn Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Eastern Blades Hockey Club Healthy Club $1,875  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Eastern Hills Hawks Junior Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Eaton Australind Junior Football Club Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Eaton Town Soccer Club (Juniors) Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Edgewater Cricket Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Esperance Football and Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Exmouth Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Floreat Athena Soccer Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Floreat Park Tennis Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Forrestdale Sporting Association Inc Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Fremantle & Dist Rugby League Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Fremantle Port Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Fremantle Rowing Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Fremantle United Soccer and Recreational Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Geraldton Clay Target Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Geraldton Softball Association Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Gidgegannup Basketball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Gnowangerup Football Club Inc Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Gomm Park Croquet Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Goomalling Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Gosnells Bowling Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Gosnells Gaters Softball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Greenough River Rowing Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Guilderton Country Club Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Hamersley Little Athletic Centre Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Hamersley Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Hamersley Rovers Soccer Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Harvey Amateur Swimming Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Hedland BMX Club Healthy Club $1,400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Hedland Equestrian Association Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Hedland Squash Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Hedland Tee Ball Association Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Hedland Tri Sports Association Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Higgins Park Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
High Wycombe Cricket Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Huntingdale Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Irwinians Hockey Club (Inc) Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Jacaranda Gymnastics Club Merredin Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
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Jets Basketball Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Jurien Horse Club Inc Healthy Club $900  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kalamunda Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kalamunda Districts Hockey Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kalamunda Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $1,100  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kalamunda United Soccer Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kalannie Football Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kalbarri Sport and Recreation Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kalbarri Touch Football Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kalgoorlie Railway Ladies Bowling Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kambalda Roosters Rugby Club Healthy Club $900  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kardinya Cricket Club Junior Division Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Karratha Amateur Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $900  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Karratha Falcons Football & Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Karratha Rugby League Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kelmscott Blues Softball Club Healthy Club $1,900  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kendenup Tennis Club Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kenwick Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
King River Horse and Pony Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kings Soccer Academy Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kingsley Junior Soccer Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kingsway Little Athletics Centre Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Koombana Bay Sailing Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Koorda Cricket Club Healthy Club $400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Koorda Pistol Club Inc Healthy Club $110  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kulin Hockey Club Inc. Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kulin Junior Basketball Club Healthy Club $1,300  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kununurra Water Ski Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Kwinana Tigers Hockey Club Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Lake Kununurra Golf Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Lancelin Community & Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $450  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Lawley Park Tennis Club Healthy Club $650  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Le Classique Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Leederville Croquet Club Incorporated Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Leeming Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mandurah Amateur Swimming and Lifesaving Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mandurah Junior Baseball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mandurah Offshore Dragon Boat Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mandurah Pirates Rugby Union Fball Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mandurah Softball Association Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mandurah Tee Ball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mandurah Triathlon Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Manjimup Marlin Swimming Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Manjimup Rovers Soccer Club Healthy Club $1,700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Manning Rippers Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Manning Squash & Racquet-Ball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Manning Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Marist Newman Junior Cricket Club  Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Melville City Soccer Club Incorporated Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Melville Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Melville Fremantle Amateur Cycling Club Inc Healthy Club $250  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Melville Squash Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Melville Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Merredin Amateur Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Merredin Squash Club Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Midcity Hockey Association Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Midland Lawn Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
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Midvale Junior Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Modernians Hockey Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Moora Swimming Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Moore River Netball Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Moorine Rock Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Morley Districts Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Morley Eagles Baseball Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mosman Park Football Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mosman Park Junior Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mount Helena Amateur Swimming Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mount Lawley Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mt Lawley Inglewood Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Mullewa Football Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Narembeen Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Narrogin Railways Institute Bowling Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Newdegate Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Newman Amateur Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Newman Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Newman Junior Cricket Association Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Newman Sports Association Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Newman Sports Association Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Noranda Netball Association Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
North Albany Football and Sporting Club  Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
North Coast Raiders Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
North Fremantle Amateur Football Club Healthy Club $1,800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
North Murray Tee Ball Association Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Northam Amateur Basketball Association Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Northam Railway Football Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Northampton Netball Association Healthy Club $650  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Northern Districts Gymnastic Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Ocean Ridge Amateur Football Club Healthy Club $1,100  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Ocean Ridge Junior Cricket Club Inc Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Old Aquinians Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Old Guildfordians Hockey Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Onslow Park Tennis Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Ord River Magpies Football Club  Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Palmyra Rugby Union Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Pannawonica Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Peel District Cycling Club Inc Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Perth Royals Amateur Soccer Club Healthy Club $625  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Perth Soccer Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Phantoms' Waterpolo Club (Inc) Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Phoenix Park Little Athletic Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Pine Valley Pistol Club Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Pingelly Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Pinjarra Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,100  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Pinjarra Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Pinjarra Junior Football Club Healthy Club $1,850  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Port Bouvard Recreation & Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Port Hedland Junior Cricket Association Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Port Hedland Rovers Football Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Port Hedland Tennis Club Incorporated Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Quairading Tennis Club (Inc.) Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Redcliffe Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $1,100  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Riding for the Disabled Assoc South West Group Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Riding for the Disabled Hills Group Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Riverside Lions Hockey Club Healthy Club $1,960  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
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Riverside Swimming Club Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Riverton Blue Marlins Inc Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Riverton Rossmoyne Junior Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Rockingham Districts Baseball Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Rockingham Districts BMX Club Inc Healthy Club $1,100  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Rockingham Rugby Union Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Rockingham Squash Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Rockingham Triathlon Club Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Roleystone Gymnastics Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Roleystone Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Roleystone Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Rossmoyne Volleyball Club Healthy Club $1,915  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Rovers Cardinals Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $1,800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Royal King's Park Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Safety Bay Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Safety Bay Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Saints Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Scarboro Surf Life Saving Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Scarborough Junior Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Scarborough Squash Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Scuba 2 The Club (Inc) Healthy Club $750  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Sea Eagles Junior Football Club (Scarborough JFC) Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Sorrento Bowling Club Healthy Club $550  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Sorrento Saints Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
South Coast R.D.A. Carriage Driving Group Inc Healthy Club $100  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
South Perth Junior Football Club Healthy Club $1,920  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
South Perth Soccer Club Inc Healthy Club $1,800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Southern Cross Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Southern Districts Cycle Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Southern Districts Dressage Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Southern Districts Touch Association Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Southern Lions (Leeming Rugby Union Football Club) Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Southern River Football & Sportsmans Club Inc Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Southside Wesley Swimming club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Spalding Park Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
St Finbars Gaelic Football Club Healthy Club $600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Stirling City Rangers Hockey Club Healthy Club $1,400  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Subiaco Football Club Healthy Club $1,950  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Supporters of Icon Fitness Students Inc Healthy Club $1,800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Swan Districts Basketball Asociation Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Swanbourne Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Swanbourne Tigers Junior Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Tambellup Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Thornlie and Districts Swimming Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Thornlie Football & Sportsmen's Club Inc  Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Tigers Football & Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Toodyay Football Club Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Trinity Aquinas Amateur Football Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Tuart Hill Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Tuart Hill Junior Soccer Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Turquoise Coast Netball Association Inc Healthy Club $925  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
University Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
University of WA Hockey Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
UWA Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $1,235  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
UWA Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Venetians Netball Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Victoria Park Cricket Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
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Victoria Park South Perth Junior Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Victoria Park Xavier Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
WA Hippotherapy Centre of Riding for the DAWA Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
WA Maccabi Soccer Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
WA Sports Federation Healthway Sponsorship Advisory Service $50,000  Health Support Sponsorship Conditions $400  
Wanneroo Districts Rugby Union Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wanneroo Football and Sporting Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wanneroo Softball Club Healthy Club $1,600  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Warnbro Swans Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Waroona Amateur Swimming Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Warren Pony Club Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Warwick Bowling Club (Inc) Healthy Club $1,100  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Watheroo Cricket Club Inc Healthy Club $700  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wembley Athletic Club Healthy Club $1,450  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wembley Athletic Club Healthy Club $550  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wembley Downs Junior Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,180  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Werribee Horse & Pony Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wesley Curtin Amateur Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
West Australian Suburban Turf Cricket Umpires Ass Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
West Coast Amateur Football Club Healthy Club $1,300  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
West Coast Gymnasts Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
West Coast Junior Football Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
West Perth Football Club Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
West Pilbara Junior Cricket Association Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
West Track Athletic Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Westminster Soccer Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wests Subiaco Rugby Union Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Westside Wolves Hockey Club Inc Healthy Club $2,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wongan Hills Tennis Club Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Wundowie Amatuer Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
Yangebup Knights Junior Ball Club Healthy Club $1,200  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
York Croquet Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
York Football Club Inc Healthy Club $1,500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
York Lawn Tennis Club Inc Healthy Club $1,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
York Pony Club Inc Healthy Club $500  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  
York Swimming Club Inc Healthy Club $800  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit $166  

        
Injury Prevention        
Northam Avon Descent Association Inc Summit Homes Avon Descent 2003 and 2004 $14,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Sport Safe $4,000  
Sports Medicine Australia WA Branch Community Education Program  $90,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Sport Safe    
The Rink Pty Ltd Skate Smart Program $3,000  Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Sport Safe Kit $400  

        
Physical Activity Promotion        
Alaskan Malamute and Siberian Husky Club of WA Running West 2003 $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Albany Athletics Club Inc Elleker Half Marathon $500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Australian Tug of War Association 2003 Australian Tug of War Association National Titles $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Badminton Association of WA Inc 2003 Annual Program $30,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $3,000  
Ballidu Primary School P&C Association Inc Bike It to Ballidu 2003 $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Bunbury Aussi Masters Swimming Club Inc Koombana Bay Swim Through $500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Bunbury Cycle Club Sue's Bridge & Return $2,500  National Heart Foundation Be Active - Cycle 

Instead Kit 
$400  

Busselton Historical Society Inc Walking the Nannup to Wonnerup disused Railway Track $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Canoeing WA Inc Annual Sponsorship 2000-2003 $30,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $4,000  
Canoeing WA Inc Developments - Paddle Academy Management 2003-2005 $35,500  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $5,000  
City of Belmont Annual Calendar of Events $15,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $1,750  
City of Fremantle Fremantle Masters Games 2003 $3,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
City of Swan Access All Areas $10,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Dandalee Bicycle Moto Cross (BMX) Club of Narrogin Dandalee BMX Club Super Series Round 10 $2,500  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $400  
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Friends of the Bibbulmun Track Inc Friends of the Bibbulmun Track - Calendar Events $2,500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Lake Grace Development Association Family Fun Day $1,500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Marching WA Inc State Marching Championships $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Masters Australian Football WA Masters Australian Football National Carnival $3,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Muntadgin Progress Association Muntadgin Biathlon $500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
National Heart Foundation Physical Activity Project $100,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $3,000  
Northam BMX Club Inc BMX State Titles 2003 $2,500  National Heart Foundation Be Active - Cycle 

Instead Kit 
$400  

Northampton District High School P&C Assn Inc. Northampton to Horrocks Fun Run 2002 $500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Northampton District High School P&C Assn Inc. Northampton to Horrocks Fun Run 2003 $500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Northcliffe Tourist Centre Inc Annual Karri Cup Mountain Bike Championship Event $3,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active - Cycle 

Instead Kit 
$400  

Orienteering Association of WA Inc 2002-2004 Program $25,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $3,250  
Perth Criterium Series Pty Ltd Perth Criterium Series & Australian Criterium Championships $37,500  Bike West, c/- Dept of Planning and 

Infrastructure 
Be Active - Cycle 
Instead 

$5,000  

Positive Ageing Foundation Lifeball $10,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $1,500  
Riding for the Disabled Association WA Multiple Programs 2003 $13,000  National Heart Foundation Disability No Limits - 

Be Active Every Day 
$1,000  

Riverview Community Services 'Lifting the Lid' Fun Run $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Roller Sports Association of WA Inline Speed Nationals $2,500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Rotary Club of Dunsborough Hills Challenge Fun Run $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Rotary Club of Kwinana Onya Bike $1,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active - Cycle 

Instead Kit 
$400  

Shire of Bruce Rock Community Sport & Recreation Coordinators Scheme $20,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $2,000  
Shire of Coolgardie Be Active I Had A Go Day 2003 $1,500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Shire of Dundas Dundas Diggers Senior Games $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Shire of Esperance Active Youth Day $1,500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Shire of Goomalling Community Sport and Recreation Co-ordinator $30,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $3,500  
Shire of Kulin Roe District Be Active Coordinators Scheme 2002-2003 $20,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $2,000  
Shire of Kulin Roe District Be Active Coordinators Scheme 2003-2004 $25,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $2,000  
Shire of Moora Community Sport and Recreation Co-ordinator $30,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day    
Shire of Shark Bay Gascoyne Games - Presentation Evening $3,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Swan Canoe Club Inc Talented Youth Grants/Instructor Training Courses $500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
        
Trustees of Christian Brothers WA - Edmund Rice Refugee Week - Sporting Activities $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
WA Disabled Sport Association Sponsorship 2000 - 2004 $180,000  National Heart Foundation Disability No Limits - 

Be Active Every Day 
$7,500  

WA Touch Association Inc Development Funding 2002/03 $40,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $5,000  
Walpole Sports & Recreation Association (Inc.) Walpole "Be Active" Triathlon $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Westside BMX Club Westside BMX Club Super Series 5 2003 $1,500  National Heart Foundation Be Active - Cycle 

Instead Kit 
$400  

Y Striders Inc Community Training Programs $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
        

Tobacco Smoking Control        
Albany Swimming Club Development & Talent Identification $1,000  Cancer Foundation Smarter than Smoking 

Kit 
$400  

Archery Society of WA 25th Junior National Archery Championships $2,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Augusta Gun Club Inc Hillview Challenge $500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Avon Valley Ladies Golf Association Junior Promotion Camps and Coaching $2,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Badgingarra Golf Club Coaching Clinics $700  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Bedford Bowling Club Bedford Bowl $1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Boxwood Hill Golf Club Skills Development Clinic $350  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Busselton Golf Club Geographe Ladies Golf Classic $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Civic Bowling Club Merredin Mens Health Promotion Lawn Bowls Day $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Corrigin Golf Club Junior Golf Program $1,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Department of Sport and Recreation WA 2003 Regional Active Women Program $75,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $5,000  
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Department of Sport and Recreation WA Aboriginal Participation In Sport $120,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $15,000  
Department of Sport and Recreation WA Country Sport Scholarships Program $150,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $6,000  
Esperance Soap Box Club South East Open Championship $500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Esperance Squash Club Inc Esperance Country Smoke Free Squash Open $1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Filipino Australian Sports Association Inc FASA Sports League 2003 $5,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Geraldton Sporting Aboriginal Corporation Aboriginal Sport and Recreation Program $25,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $3,500  
Great Northern 8-Ball Association Batavia Black Ball Classic $1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Greenough Archery Club ABA - State Field Archery Titles $800  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Hockey WA Hockey WA 2002 Sponsorship $200,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smoke Free WA $25,000  
Junior Soccer Association of WA Inc  JSA Country Week 2003 $2,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Karawara Community Project Getting Started $1,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Kelmscott Roos Junior Soccer Club Inc Healthway Soccer Development $2,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Kulin Bowling Club Inc Kulin Ladies/Men's Bowls Classic $1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Lake Grace/Pingrup Football Club Great Southern Colts Football Carnival $2,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Leeuwin - Naturaliste Junior Soccer Association 2003 Program $2,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Manjimup Country Club Kristofferrsson Cup $1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Merredin Golf Club Eastern Districts Ladies Golf Ass. Championships $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Mosman Park Golf Club Junior Golfing Community Development Project $1,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Peel Junior Soccer Association Inc 2003 Program $2,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Perth Glory  Season 2002 - 2003 $90,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Quit $13,000  
Port Hedland Golf Club Inc 2003 Program $2,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Railways Football Club (Kalgoorlie) Recruitment & Career Development Program  $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Royal WA Bowling Association (Bowls WA) Annual Program 2004 $30,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $4,000  
Shire of Victoria Plains Squash Participation & Development $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
South Perth Women's Hockey Club Ladies State Veterans Hockey Carnival 2003  $1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Spalding Park Golf Club Inc Smoke Free Spalding Park Open 2003-2004 $9,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Town of Port Hedland Boodarie Bowls Carnival $5,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
WA Golf Association Inc 2003 Golf Sponsorship $68,000  National Heart Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $6,000  
WA Institute of Sport STS WAIS Talent Search 2002/2003 $67,000  National Heart Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $10,000  
WA Lacrosse Association New Futures $30,000  Cancer Foundation Smoke Free WA $5,000  
WA Netball Association Inc 2003-2005 Active Netball $170,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smoke Free WA $30,000  
WA Squash WA Squash Development Program 2003 $50,000  National Heart Foundation Smoke Free WA $5,000  
WA Table Tennis Association Inc Development Program 2003/2004 $9,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
West Australian Football Commission Inc Football Sponsorship 2002 - 2005 $335,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smoke Free WA $40,000  
West Australian Rifle Association Inc 2003 Queens Prize $1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
West Australian Womens Football League Smarter than Smoking School Girls Cup $6,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Western Australian Indigenous Sporting Foundation  Clontarf Aboriginal Academy $40,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $4,000  
Women's Golf WA Inc Annual Sponsorship 2001-2002 $30,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,333  
Women's Golf WA Inc Annual Program 2003-2005 $33,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $4,000  
Women's Soccer WA WSWA Development Program 2003 $15,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $2,000  
Womensport West Annual Program 2003-2004 $20,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $4,000  
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Arts Projects (approved for funding in 2002-2003)  

        
Organisation Project Title Project 

Amount 
 Health Agency Health Message Support 

Amount 

        
Alcohol and other drug misuse        
Abmusic Aboriginal Corporation Abmusic Indigenous Arts & Cultural Showcase 2003 $20,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $4,000  
Arts Radio Ltd (RTRFM 92.1) Fresh Blast $65,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $6,000  
Augusta-Margaret River Youth Advisory Council SmArt Stuff $2,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control    
Australian Youth Orchestra National Music Camp 2003 $4,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Autonomous Productions Inc The Bacchae $2,500  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Avon Valley Arts Society 2003 Annual Program $15,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Black Swan Theatre X-Stacy $16,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $2,000  
Broome Musicians Aboriginal Corporation Family Free Concerts $5,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $400  
Bunbury Regional Art Management Board Inc Wirdanginy Time 2002 $5,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $400  
City of Cockburn Area COC - Cockburn YAC Festival $5,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware Kit $400  
City of Fremantle Warrdarnji Concert/Dreamtime Puppets $18,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $3,000  
City of South Perth Collision $7,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $1,000  
City of Stirling 2003 Youth Festival - Cosmonautical $5,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
City of Subiaco AMPFEST $9,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $1,000  
Coalition of Peoples Inc Survival 2003 - Indigenous Cultural Festival $5,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $1,000  
Community Arts Network of WA Inc LIVEWORX 2003 $25,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $3,500  
Country Arts WA Inc Taking Arts Across the Top - Kimberley, Pilbara & 

Gascoyne 
$20,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $3,500  

Country Arts WA Inc Youth Arts Development Program $30,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $4,000  
Curtin University of Technology Mundjah Festival 2002 $3,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $400  
Denmark Local Drug Action Group Gromfest 2003 $3,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control    
Derby District High School Kimberley Moonrise Rock Festival $5,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $400  
Festival Fringe Society of Perth Artrage Festival $25,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $3,000  
Geraldton Regional Community Education Centre Paint the Park $3,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control    
Headquarters Youth Recreation, Cultural and Arts HQ ARTS $10,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $1,500  
Holyoake the Australian Institute on Alcohol RAP Park Summer Events $2,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control    
Holyoake the Australian Institute on Alcohol Rap Park Summer Events Calendar $3,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Hopetoun Local Drug Action Group Inc. Hopetoun Summer Festival $2,500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware Kit $500  
Indigenous Festivals of Australia Ltd 2003 CROC Festival $10,100  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $4,000  
Lakeside Baptist Church Inc Big Dawg Party $1,500  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
MAAMBA Aboriginal Corporation Nyoongah Seasons Art Project $2,500  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $400  
Magabala Books Aboriginal Corporation Indigenous Author Development in the Kimberley $5,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $600  
Mundaring Arts Centre Inc Bust Out - Visual Juice & Recreate Youth Workshops $10,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $2,000  
Peel Youth Program Dilemma Dance Party $2,800  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control    
Perth Youth Advisory Council Cultural Centre Youth Carnival $2,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Propelarts Metro Youth Arts Development Fund $87,500  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $4,000  
Rottnest Island Business Community Rottnest Leavers 2002 $8,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA 100% Control $2,000  
Saltbush Youth Festival Inc Saltbush Youth Festival 2002 $3,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Shinju Matsuri Inc  Bright & Breezy Kids Fest $8,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $400  
Shire of Katanning National Youth Week - "What's It to You" $4,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Shire of Northam Wundowie Big YAC-Out $1,600  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Soroptimist International of Fremantle Remembering:  Women Working for Women $3,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
South Lake Ottey Family & Neighbourhood Centre Community Arts Project $1,500  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Southside Christian Centre AOG Inc Slingshot Music & Skate Festival $1,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
St Barbara's Festival Inc Youth Council 'Glamdring' Event $800  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 100% Control $400  
Theatre Kimberley Worn Art 2002 $3,000  Healthway Kit Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $400  
WA Youth Jazz Orchestra Association WAYJO Annual Program  $35,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA 100% Control $3,500  
WA Youth Theatre Company Annual Program 2003 $15,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA 100% Control $2,000  
West Australian Music Industry Association The Next Big Thing WA - 2003 $50,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Drug Aware $7,000  
Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre Annual Program 2003-2005 $45,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture $5,000  
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Cancer Prevention        
City of Rockingham Rockingham Beach Arts Festival $2,500  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Shire of Kalamunda Corymbia Sun Street Parade $2,500  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  
Two Rocks Blessing of the Fleet & Community Day Tapping the Talent & Bridging the Gap $3,000  Cancer Foundation Sun Smart Kit $400  

        
Good Nutrition Promotion        
Albany Eisteddfod (Inc.) 2003 Albany Eisteddfod $1,500  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Australian Asian Association of WA Inc International Folkfest 2003 $7,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Celebrate Albany Inc. Celebrate Albany and Anzac Day Festival $2,500  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Central South Eisteddfod 2003 Central South Eisteddfod & Talent Expo $1,500  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
City of Bunbury Peoplefest $1,500  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Down South Festival Inc Down South Festival $3,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Fairbridge Festival Inc Fairbridge Festival 2001-2003 $15,000  National Heart Foundation Enjoy Healthy Eating $3,500  
Golden Valley Tree Park Committee Youth Sculptures, Workshops and Community 

Festival 
$2,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  

Handzon Theatre Company Breast Stroke and Lunchtime Theatre $14,000  Cancer Foundation Enjoy Healthy Eating $3,000  
Kellerberrin and Districts Agricultural Society Kellerberrin Annual Show $1,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Latin American Cultural Association Inc 2003 Cultural Projects $15,000  Cancer Foundation Enjoy Healthy Eating $2,500  
Manjimup Chamber of Commerce and Industry Cherry Harmony Festival $6,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Nannup Arts Council Nannup 2003 Art & Photography Exhibition $2,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Nannup Music Club  2003 Nannup Music Festival $8,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Narrogin Spring Festival Inc Spring Festival Street Parade $2,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Oz Concert Inc Australia Day Oz Concert $7,000  Healthway Kit Eat More Fruit 'n' Veg    
Perth International Arts Festival (PIAF) Celestial City $35,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Eat More Fruit 'n' Veg $5,000  
Samoan Culture Group Inc. Taumafa & Taaaloga Samoa $1,000  Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating $400  
Steps Youth Dance Company 2001-2003 Annual Program $30,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating $6,000  

        
Health Promotion        
B K Troupers Association (Inc.) Farmers Spirit Lifting Concert $3,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Blackwood Artisan's Guild MERIDIAN $1,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Boyup Brook Tourism Association Autumn Art Affair $2,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Capel Fest Inc Capel Fest Arts Program $3,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Collie Heritage Group Inc Opening of the Collie Railway Rolling Stock Museum $1,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Collie River Valley  "Busy Fingers" (Art & Craft)  Busy Fingers $1,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Cunderdin Shire Council Concert in the Park $1,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Dalwallinu Creative Arts Inc Dalwallinu Arts Festival 2003 $600  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Darlington Arts Festival Association Darlington Arts Festival 2002 $2,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Dwellingup Business Association Dwellingup Winterfest $4,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Eneabba Primary School Parentsand Citizens Ass Year of the Outback Bush Dance $1,100  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Esperance Community Arts (Inc.) Healthway Arts Alley $5,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Hopetoun Progress Association Inc Hopetoun Summer Festival, Free Community 

Concert. 
$1,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  

Hyden Occasional Child Care Hyden Family Festival $3,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Jurien Bay Progress & Tourism Jurien Bay Easter Fair $1,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Kalannie Community Telecentre Gravel Pit Variety Concert 2003 $4,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Kellerberrin Aboriginal Progress Association Inc Keela Dreaming - Cultural Festival $6,000  Wheatbelt Public Health Unit Various Health Messages $1,500  
Kimberley Stolen Generation Aboriginal 
Corporation 

Kimberley Stolen Generation Concert $5,000  Kimberley Public Health Unit Various Health Messages $1,000  

Kulin Bush Races Inc. Kulin Bush Races Art and Craft Exhibition $1,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Lions Club of Boddington Lions Australia Day Family Concert $1,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Manjimup Shire Council Australia Day 2003 $1,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Margaret River Arts Council Saturday Sundowners in Pioneer Park $3,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Merredin and Districts Agricultural Society Inc Merredin Community Show $1,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Mukinbudin Telecentre Inc Mukinbudin Drama Club - "The Outback Debutante 

Ball" 
$2,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  

Narrikup District Progress Association Narrikup's Folk by Firelight $1,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
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North Yunderup Community Association Community Celebration & Launch of Community Art 

Project 
$900  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  

Ongerup Shears Inc Ongerup Shears Country Fair $1,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Perenjori Shire Council Perenjori Community Banner Project $1,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Pilbara Community Drug Services DRUGed - a performance with a twist $4,000  Pilbara Public Health Unit (Karratha 

Community Health) 
Various Health Messages $800  

Shire of Cranbrook Cranbrook Shire on Show $1,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Shire of Toodyay 2003 Toodyay Moondyne Festival $879  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Shire of Wandering Wandering Festival $1,208  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Southern Edge Arts Sea Artistic Program 2003 $35,000  Lower Great Southern Primary 

Health Service 
Various Health Messages $6,000  

The Walkington Theatre 2HOT Youth Festival $4,000  Pilbara Public Health Unit (Karratha 
Community Health) 

Various Health Messages $0  

Town of East Fremantle East Fremantle Fiesta 2002 $2,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Town of Vincent Vincent Alive - Moving into Summer $5,000  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $600  
Vancouver Arts Centre Multi Events Program 2003 $15,000  Lower Great Southern Primary 

Health Service 
Various Health Messages $3,000  

Westonia Telecentre Westonia Community Festival $2,500  Healthway Kit Healthy Community $400  
Wongutha Birni Buyu (Smoke) $11,000  Goldfields Public Health Various $2,000  

        
Injury Prevention        
Bonport Pty Ltd Australian Opera Studio Trust - Primary School 

Opera 
$10,000  KIDSAFE Safety Rules OK $2,000  

Fremantle Children's Literature Centre  Annual Program 2003-2005 $35,000  KIDSAFE Safety Rules OK $10,60
0 

 

Musica Viva Australia 2002 Annual Program $40,000  KIDSAFE Safety Rules OK $4,200  
Musica Viva Australia Musica Viva In Schools - South West Tours $15,000  KIDSAFE Safety Rules OK $3,000  
Spare Parts Theatre Inc 2002 - 2004 Multiyear Contract $80,000  KIDSAFE Safety Rules OK $9,500  
The Kaleidoscope Ensemble The Kaleidoscope Ensemble 2003 $5,000  KIDSAFE Safety Rules OK $1,000  

        
Mental Health Promotion        
Artists' Foundation of WA AFWA 2003 Exhibition Program  $20,000  Relationships Australia Make time to talk $3,000  
Perth Theatre Company Annual Program 2003 $30,000  Relationships Australia Make time to talk $5,000  
The Menswork Project (WA) The Men - Roadshow $2,000  Relationships Australia Make time to talk $700  
Werzel's Comedy Company Pty Ltd Werzel's Comedy Lounge 2003-2004 Season $15,000  Relationships Australia Make time to talk $3,000  

        
Physical Activity Promotion        
Artatac - Busselton Beach Festival Inc Busselton Beach Festival - Battle of the Young Bands $6,400  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $1,000  
Australian Institute of Classical Dance AICD International Ballet Awards $1,500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
B K Troupers Association (Inc.) Ampitheatre First Birthday Celebrations $2,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Ballet Workshop Inc / Prompt Corner 2003 Annual Program $12,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $2,000  
Black Swan Theatre BE ACTIVE BSX - Theatre $35,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $3,000  
City Entertainers Community Concert Group Inc Ain't We Got Fun Concert Series $2,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
City of Cockburn Celebration of Ability Art Expo $6,000  National Heart Foundation Disability No Limits - Be Active Every 

Day 
$400  

City of Perth Public Art Walk Brochure 2003 $2,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Festival of Busselton Inc Festival of Busselton $2,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Jazz Club of WA Inc 18th WA Jazz Festival $2,500  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  
Rotary Club of Mount Lawley Kinetic Sculpture Race $8,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $600  
West Australian Ballet 2003 BE ACTIVE ADOPT A SCHOOL PROJECT $10,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $2,000  
West Australian Ballet Annual Sponsorship 2001-2003 $55,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $5,500  
Williams Art and Craft Centre Inc Williams Art and Craft Open Day $1,000  Healthway Kit Be Active Every Day $400  

        
Sexual Health        
Deckchair Theatre 2003 Annual Program $35,000  Family Planning Association Play It Safe $5,000  
Deckchair Theatre Prayer to an Iron God $18,000  Family Planning Association Play It Safe $2,500  
Lesbian & Gay Pride WA (Inc.) Pride 2002 Film Screenings $3,000  Family Planning Association Play It Safe $900  
Performing Arts Centre Society of WA Inc Blue Room 2003 $25,000  Family Planning Association Play It Safe $4,000  
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Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts 2002 Annual Program $50,000  Family Planning Association Play It Safe $8,000  
VOCES Arts Networking Group 7th Over the Fence Comedy Film Festival $12,000  Family Planning Association Play It Safe $2,500  

        
Tobacco Smoking Control        
Araluen Botanic Park Foundation Inc Araluen's Summer Events 2003 $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Art On The Move NETS Education & Special Exhibition Events $50,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,500  
Australian Band and Orchestra Directors Assoc WA Schools Concert Band and Orchestra Festivals $3,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Australian Dance Council WA Branch (Ausdance) Ausdance 2003 Annual Program $23,000  Asthma Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $4,500  
Awesome Arts Australia Ltd AWESOME Smarter Than Smoking Regional Activities 

Programme 
$45,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $5,000  

Awesome Arts Australia Ltd Awesome Festival 2001-2003 $65,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $10,50
0 

 

Badgingarra Bush Bonanza The Annual Badgingarra Bush Bonanza $2,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Banksia Park Primary School P&C Assn Inc 2002 South West Band Tour $1,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Barking Gecko Theatre Company 2002 Annual Program $55,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $6,500  
Birlirr Ngawiyiwu School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Blues at Bridgetown Sanctuary at the Repertory $5,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Boddington Arts Council Boddington Arts Council Open Day & Arts Exhibition 

2002 
$1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  

Bunbury & Districts Combined Schools Music 
FestivaL 

Combined Schools Music Festival $2,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  

Bunbury Musical Comedy Group 2003 Performance Program - New Lyric Theatre $7,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Bunbury Regional Theatre Inc Ned Kelly - The Musical $5,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Buzz Dance Theatre Annual Program 2003-2005 $55,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $6,000  
Cable Beach Primary School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Children's Book Council of Australia (WA Branch)  Children's Book Week 2003 $12,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
City of Bayswater Autumn River Festival $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
City of Fremantle Fremantle Annual Arts Program 2003 $27,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smoke Free WA $4,000  
City of Joondalup Summer Events Program $30,000  National Heart Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $3,500  
City of Mandurah Stretch Festival $11,000  Cancer Foundation Smarter than Smoking $1,500  
City of Melville Festival of Melville $6,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
City of Rockingham City of Rockingham Arts and Culture Program $15,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,000  
City of South Perth City of Perth Fiesta 2003 $10,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $2,000  
Collegium Symphonic Chorus Incorporated Concert Series 2003 $4,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Collie Country Music Club Collie Country Music Roundup $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Comhaltas Perth Inc Australasian Fleadh $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Country Arts WA Inc Momentum 2001 $42,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,666  
Djarindjin Lombadina Catholic School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Djugerari Remote Community School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $200  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Esperance Music Festival Esperance Music Festival $1,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Esperance Senior High School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Festival of the Wind Street Arts Party $13,000  Asthma Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $2,000  
Fly By Night Musicians Club Inc Smarter than Smoking Youth Program $45,000  National Heart Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,500  
Fremantle Arts Centre Courtyard Music Program $20,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $2,000  
Gascoyne Public Health Unit The Carnarvon Youth & Children's Festival $4,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Gascoyne Showcase of Performing Arts Inc Gascoyne Showcase 2003 $2,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Gnowangerup District High School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Halls Creek District High School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Hamilton Senior High School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Hypertheatre  CRACKED/Billy the Dragon $4,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
International Art Space Kellerberrin Trust 2003 Artistic Program $10,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $1,500  
Jazz Fremantle Inc Jazz Fremantle Presents $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Karratha Youth Theatre Louder 2003 $15,000  Pilbara Public Health Unit (Karratha 

Community Health) 
Smarter Than Smoking $3,000  

Katanning Senior High School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
La Grange Remote Community School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Leederville Community Action Group Inc The Leederville Arty Farty Street Party $5,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Lions Club of Mandurah YOH Fest Australia 2003-2005 $40,000  Asthma Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $4,000  
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Lions Club of Rockingham Inc Sunset Jazz Festival $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
LITTLE GIRL INCORPORATED girl_6156 presents... $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Mandurah Concert Band What a Wonderful World $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Mandurah Festival of Dance Inc Mandurah Festival of Dance 2003 $1,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Mandurah Performing Arts Community In-House Productions $8,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Merredin Senior High School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Multicultural Arts of WA (Kulcha) Annual Sponsorship Program 2003-2005 $40,000  National Heart Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,000  
Mundaring Performing Arts Society Centenary Picnic Concert $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
National Liaison Committee for International WA Multicultural Week 2003 $4,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Nightingale Chorale Inc Sing Out Choral Festival $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Norseman District High School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $400  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Nungarin Shire Council Mangowine Magic $4,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
One Arm Point Remote Community School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $300  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Oombulgurri Remote Community School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Perth Jazz Society Fire Without Smoke  $15,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,000  
Perth Oratorio Choir Concert Season 2003 $6,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Ravensthorpe Districts Spring Festival Committee Spring Festival $4,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Rockingham City Pipe Band Piping & Drumming Solo's Contest 2003 $1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Roebourne Annexe 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Roebourne Primary School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Rotary Club of Mundaring Oz/Bali Recovery Concert $5,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Royal Agricultural Society of WA Perth Royal Show Evening Entertainment $22,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,000  
St Bartholomew's House Inc Scars for Stars (TBC) Mental Health Week Art 

Exhibition 
$1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  

Sunset Cinema Grassroots Short Film Competition $5,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Swan and Flippers Company The Big Sing $1,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Terrace Proms Inc 5th Annual Terrace Proms $12,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $2,000  
Theatre Ink Productions Pty Ltd Morris Gleitzman's Worry Warts $3,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Town of Bassendean Bassendean Oval Family Gala Concert $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Town of Bassendean Summer Series Celebration 2003 $5,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $1,000  
Town of Cottesloe Cottesloe Twilight Concerts $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Town of Northam 2003 Summer Siesta Concert Series $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Victoria Park Centre For The Arts 'Live at the Park - Celebrating Us' $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Vision Events Management Pty Ltd Western Stars Spectacular $45,000  Asthma Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $6,000  
Visual Arts Foundation Artist-in-Residence Program Schools 2003 $20,000  National Heart Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $3,000  
V'vaci Early Music Ensemble Incorporated Musica da Camera in WA $700  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
WA Police Pipe Band Supports Assn Inc Crossing the Border $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
WA State Literature Centre Inc Writers on the Road 2003 $15,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
WA Young Guns - A Showcase of Country Music  WA Young Guns - A Showcase of Country Music $7,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
WA Youth Orchestra Association 2001 Annual Sponsorship $30,000  Asthma Foundation Smarter Than Smoking $2,667  
Wanalirri Catholic School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
West Australian Music Industry Association Events Program 2003 $35,000  Cancer Foundation Smoke Free WA $4,000  
West Australian Opera Annual Program 2003-2005 $58,400  National Heart Foundation Smoke Free WA $6,250  
West Australian Symphony Orchestra ECHO Ensemble Education Program $43,500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking $6,000  
Western Australian German Business Assn In Unison - Techni Cultural Festival $5,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Western Australian Secondary Strings Inc Sunday Afternoon in the Park $1,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Wulungarra Community School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Wyndham District High School 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Yinjaa Barric Centre 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
Youth Involvement Council Inc 2003 CROC Festival - Travel Sponsorship $500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smarter Than Smoking    
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Racing Projects (approved for funding in 2002-2003) 

        
Organisation Project Title Project 

Amount 
 Health Agency  Health Message  Support 

Amount 

        
Alcohol and other drug misuse        
West Australian Car Club Inc 2003 Forest Rally $23,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Respect Yourself $4,695  

        
Good Nutrition Promotion        
Albany Racing Club Inc The Albany Cup $12,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Bunbury Turf Club 2003 Bunbury Turf Club $9,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Collie Race Club Inc Collie Races 2003 $2,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
East Pilbara Race Club Newman Cup Day 2002 $1,500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Esperance Bay Turf Club Race Day Sponsorship $2,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Geraldton Turf Club Inc Easter Cup Race Meeting 2003 $3,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Mt Barker Turf Club 2003 Racing Day $3,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Northam Race Club Inc 2003 Handicap. Healthway Race Meeting $5,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Pingrup Race Club Pingrup Races & Root Festival $1,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Port Hedland Turf Club Healthway Race Day $3,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
Southern Districts Thoroughbred Association Inc Lark Hill Race Day $1,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating    
WA Turf Club Racing Sponsorship $210,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Enjoy Healthy Eating $35,000  

        
Physical Activity Promotion        
Cunderdin Trotting Club (Inc) Be Active Trotting Meeting $1,500  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day    
Fremantle Trotting Club Inc Be Active Fremantle Pacing Cup $11,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day    
Greyhounds WA (WAGRA)  Sponsorship 2002-2003 $50,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $12,000  
WA Trotting Association Be Active Summer of Stars Carnival  $185,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day $30,000  
WA Trotting Association Sponsorship Proposal 2001/2003 $21,500  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day    
WA Trotting Association Sponsorship of Country Trotting 2003/2004 $35,000  National Heart Foundation Be Active Every Day    

        
Tobacco Smoking Control        
Albany Speedway Club Inc. Junior Sedan Series $4,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Augusta Margaret River Hot Rod Club 2003 Race Meetings $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Broome Junior/Senior Motocross Club Kimberley Motocross Challege $1,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking    
Bunbury City Speedway (Speedworx Pty Ltd) 2002/2003 Bunbury Speedway $15,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Quit $3,000  
Collie Racing Drivers Association Inc Smarter then Smoking Challenge 2003 $5,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Derby 4 Kids Incorporated Derby Moto X Titles $1,500  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $400  
Esperance Speedway Association Esperance Speedway Juniors $2,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Great Southern Kart Club of WA Inc Australian Independant Dirt Association WA State 

Titles 
$1,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  

Kwinana Motorplex Pty Ltd Kwinana Motorplex $157,500  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Quit $20,000  
Manjimup Speedway Club Inc Junior Development $1,500  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Motorcycling Australia  2003 Motorcycle Racing - Selected Premium Events $22,500  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $4,500  
Motorcycling Australia  Enduro Championships 2002 $2,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Perth TQ Car Club Inc State Sidecar Title/Junior Sedan State Title $3,000  Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA $400  
Racing Drivers' Association of WA Healthway Junior Sedan & Junior Kart Series $3,000  Healthway Kit Smarter Than Smoking $1,000  
Vintage Sports Car Club of WA Inc 2003 Program $20,000  Asthma Foundation Smoke Free WA $3,000  
WA Sporting Car Club SmokeFree Night Masters Series $15,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Smoke Free WA $3,000  
Western Australian Tourism Commission 
(Eventscorp) 

Telstra Rally Australia 2002 $30,000  M & C Support - Dept of Health WA Quit $10,000  

 


